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Commissioner

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION
101 Pleasant Street
Concord, N.H. 03301
FAX 603-271-1953
Citizens Services Line 1-800-339-9900

May 1, 2017

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Executive Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Education, to amend a grant agreement, on a sole source basis
with Dover Housing Authority, Dover, NH (Vendor Code #159988), by increasing the price
fimitation by $94,737.50 from $191,972.65 to $286,710.15 and extending the end date from June
30, 2017 to June 30, 2018 to continue to offer extended day programming for youth and their
families, upon Governor and Council approval. Item originally approved by Governor and
Council on 6/19/13 (item #202), renewed on 6/18/14 (ltem #145), renewed on 6/24/15 {ltem
#158), and renewed on 6/29/16 (item #111}. 100% Federal Funds.

Funds to support this request are anticipated to be available in the account titled 21st Century
Community Title IV as follows, contingent upon legislative approval of the next biennium budget:

FY18

06-56-56-563010-75380000-072-500577 Grants-Federal $94,737.50
EXPLANATION

The Department went out to RFP for these grant funds in January 2013 with the intent of
including a renewal option. The renewal option was included in the Governor and Council letter
but not stated in the contract warmranting that this amendment be submitted on a sole source
basis. This is the fifth year of a five year grant. The United States Department of Education
legisiation allows for five-year 215t Century Community Learning Center grants to serve youth and
their families during the out-of-school-time hours. Grants are awarded annually pending the
receipt of an Annual Performance Report that indicates sufficient progress and the availability of
federal funds.

New Hampshire anticipates a FY 2018 grant award in the amount of $4,900,000.00 from the
United States Department of Education under Title IVB, the 21t Century Community Learning
Center Program. This program provides grants to inner city and rural schools, community based
organizations, youth development agencies and other educational agencies to provide
expanded learning opportunities for children outside of regular school hours in a safe
environment. The programs will offer students a broad array of additional services, programs,
and activities such as tutorial services, youth development activities, drug and violence
prevention, counseling programs, art, music, recreation programs, and technology education.

TDD Access: Relay NH 711
EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER- EQUAL EDUCATIONAL OPPORTUNITIES
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These programs and services are designed to reinforce and complement the regular academic
program of the participating students.

The program services provided by the grant cited above will be coordinated by the Dover
Housing Authority in Dover, NH in collaboration with the Dover School District. This collaborative
approach wilt serve elementary Dover School District youth and their families.

This is the fifth year of a five year grant. In the event Federal Funds are no longer available,
General Funds will not be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

gy

Frank Edelblut
Commissioner of Education

TDD Access: Relay NH 711
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AMENDMENT TO
GRANT AGREEMENT

Now come the New Hampshire Department of Education, Bureau of Integrated Programs, hereinafter “the
Agency,” and the Dover Housing Authority Dover , NH , hereinafter “the Grantee”, and, pursuant to an agreement
between the parties that was approved by Governor and Council on 6/19/13 (Item #202), renewed on 6/18/14 (Item
#145), renewed on 6/24/15 (Item #158), and renewed on 6/29/16 (Item #111), hereby agree to modify same as
follows:

1. Agreement, General Provisions, Block 1.6, remove June 30, 2017 and replace with June 30, 2018.
2. Agreement, General Provisions, Block 1.8, remove $191,972.65 and replace with $286,710.15.

3. Replace Exhibit B with B-1 — Budget.

4. All other provisions of this agreement shall remain in full force and effect.

5. This amendment shall commence upon Governor and Council approval and shall terminate on June 30, 2018.

This modification of an existing agreement is hereby incorporated by reference to the existing agreement by the
parties and must be attached to the said agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREQF, the parties, hereto have set their hands as of the day and year first above written.

THE STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
Department of Education (Agency)

Division of __Cognmissioner’s Office

o QMM vi-n

Commissioner of Education Date

Dover Housing Authority
Namgof Entity (Grantee)

-~
3/31 -7
Date

By:

STATE OF A ku ) HamFsk LA

County of j“‘/dfmfd

On this the_3| i day of a 2017 before me, __| lcg! M. T¢ oagz ,the undersigned
officer, personally appeared Allan b. Kians n to me {or Satisfactory proven) to be
the person whose name is subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged that he/she executed the same for
the purposes therein contained.

In witness whereof, I hereto set my hand and official seal.

5/y/>0

Commission Expires

Approved as to form, substance and execution by the Attorney General this £ nA day of /)L e s, 2017.

> -

Approved by the Governor and Council this day of ,2017

By:




EXHIBIT B-1

BUDGET
Expenditure Line Items FY18
July 1, 2017-June 30, 2018

Salaries and wages (directly related to service) $64,386.05
Employee Benefits $9,652.16
Contract Services (Directly related to
programming) $16,000.00
Supplies $4,699.29

Project Total $94,737.50
Source of Funding: Funding for this contract is 100% Federal Funds from the account titled

Limitation on price:

Method of Payment:

21% Century Community, Title IVB, as follows, contingent upon
legislative approval of the next biennium budget:

FY 18 .
06-56-56-563010-75380000-072-500577 $94,737.50
Grants Federal

Upon mutual agreement between the 21% CCLC State Coordinator and the
grantee, line items in this budget may be adjusted but in no case shall the
total budget exceed the price limitation of $94,737.50.

Payment is to be made monthly on the basis of invoices which are
supported by a summary of activities that have taken place in accordance
with the terms of the approved grant proposal, along with a detailed listing
of expenses incurred. If otherwise correct and acceptable, payments will
be made for 100% of the expenditures listed. Invoices and reports shall be
submitted to the 21 CCLC State Coordinator.

Contract between VENDOR and the New Hampshire Department of Education %p)
Contractor Initials

Date /f'; ',T



RESOLUTION NO 2017-04-18-02

WHEREAS, the 21t Century Grant requires a signed contract
between the Dover Housing Authority, Fiscal Agent for Seymour Osman
Community Center, and the State of New Hampshire Department of
Education,

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that Allan B. Krans, Executive
Director, is duly authorized to enter a contract, on behalf of Dover Housing
Authority, with the State of New Hampshire Department of Education for
fiscal year end June 30, 2018 funding, and is further authorized to execute
any documents which may, in his judgment, be desirable or necessary to
effect the purpose of this vote.

Above is a true and correct copy of the resolution passed by the
Commissioners of the Dover Housing Authority at their regular meeting April
18, 2017.

[ further certify that the above resolution was in full force and effect on
the date the grant agreement was signed.

/

Chaipmhan

/Mny 31 2017
Date



State of New Hampshire
Department of State

CERTIFICATE

1, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that SEYMOUR OSMAN
COMMUNITY CENTER is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on April

29,2002, I further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of Staie’s office have been received and is in good

standing as far as this office is concerned.

Business ID: 404057

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed
the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,
this 25th day of April A.D. 2017,

For ok

William M. Gardner

Secretary of State




M 0"(0 From the Desk g

May 16, 2016

i

Suzanne Birdsall Stone

Re: Relationship between the Dover Housing Authority and the Seymour Osman Community
Center, Inc.

Dear Suzanne:

I am the Executive Director of the Dover Housing Authority (DHA), 62 Whittier Street, and also
the Executive Director of the Seymour Osman Community Center (SOCC), Inc. located at 40
Hampshire Circle, both in Dover New Hampshire. The physical structure known as the SOCC is
located in the middle of the DHA residential neighborhood.

The Dover Housing Authority is a statutory entity pursuant to RSA 203. The Seymour Osman
Community Center, Inc. is a not for profit corporation registered in the State of New Hampshire.

You asked me to describe the relationship between the DHA and the SOCC.

In a nutshell, the SOCC is the social service arm of the DHA. Social services for our residents
come from the SOCC. The DHA provides permanent housing using federal funds for residents
who qualify due to low income. The DHA owns a family residential neighborhood (on 4
contiguous streets) consisting of 184 family apartments, the residents of which all receive federal
subsidies for permanent housing.

All funding for the operation of the SOCC comes from the DHA except the 21% Century grant
and some small fundraising efforts by the SOCC. The full-time staff at the SOCC consists of
one person. She receives salary and benefits through the DHA. She is paid with a DHA check.
The physical space housing the SOCC (ie. the Community Center) is owned by the DHA. All
expenses of SOCC are paid through and by the DHA.

The DHA and SOCC have separate boards of directors. The members of the DHA Board are
appointed by the City Manager pursuant to state statute. The members of the SOCC Board are
appointed by the DHA Board. Some DHA board members serve on the Board of the SOCC.

This relationship has existed for over 20 years.
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@ "(0 From the Desk o

Sincerely,

Allan B. Krans
Executive Director

Cc. Stacey Kearns, Wendy Tenney
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ACORD CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE 5/23/2016

REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED

certificate holder in leu of such endorsement(s).

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(les) must be endorsed. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to
the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the

PRODUCER

D.B. Warlick & Co.
P O Box 1260

69 Lafayette Rd.

North Hampton NH 03862

[EONTAT Kathleen Flibotte, CISR

PHONE = = (603)964-6065 [ 0% \oi. (5031 964-3029
E-MAIL % i

| ADDRESS: kflibottefdbwarlick.com

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE
msurer A:Philadelphia Indemnity

NAIC o

INSURED
Seymour Osman Community Center

nsuRer B Mount Vernon Fire Insurance

INSURERC :
c/o Dover Housing Authority INSURER D :
62 Whittier St INSURER E :
Dover NH 03820 INSURER F ;
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER:16-17 Master REVISION NUMBER: 1

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED B8Y THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

SR ABBL [ FOLIC
LYR TYPE OF INSURANCE POLICY NUMBER m mevv%) UMITS
| GENERAL LIABILITY EACH OCCURRENCE s 1,000,000
X | COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY $ 100,000
A J CLAIMS-MADE OCCUR HPK1532724 P/24/2016 br/u/zon MED EXP (Any one person) | § 5,000
__{ PERSONAL & ADV INJURY | § 1,000,000
| GENERAL AGGREGATE S 2,000,000
GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: PRODUCTS - COMPIOP AGG | $ 2,000,000
X |roucy| |FBS: Lo¢ s
AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY COMBINED )§'N3'-E LM N
| | anvauto BODILY INJURY {Per person) | §
|| AL OumED SCHEDULED BODILY INJURY (Per accident) | §
NON-OWNED | PROPERTY DAMAGE
| HRED AUTOS AUTOS | (Per accdent) S
s
| __|UMBRELLAUAB | | occur EACH OCCURRENCE $
EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE s
DED [ rRETENTKON $ s
WORKERS COMPENSATION WC STATU- OTH-
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY YIN ‘
ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE
OFFICERMEMBER EXCLUDED? NIA E.L EACH ACCIDENT $
(Mandatory in NH) E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEH §
I yes, describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT | $
B |Directors & Officers 20077873 (D&O) /29/2016 B/29/2017 | gqach Claim & Aggregate $1,000,000
Employment Practices 20077873 (EPLI) /29/2016 8/29/2017 | goch Claim & Aggregate $1,000,000

Evidence of coverage

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (Attach ACORD 101, Additionat Remarks Schadule, if more space Is required)

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

CANCELLATION

NH Department of Education
State Office Park South
101 Pleasant Street
Concord, NH 03301-3860

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

gighereog

Edward Young/KF CGEfaace, o7 a———

ACORD 26 (2010/05)
INS025 (201005).01

© 1988-2010 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
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NH Public Risk Management Exchange CERT' FICATE OF COVERAG E

The New Hampshire Public Risk Management Exchange (Primex’) is organized under the New Hampshire Revised Statutes Annotated, Chapter 5-B,
Pooled Risk Management Programs. In accordance with those statutes, its Trust Agreement and bylaws, Primex® is authorized to provide pooled risk
management programs established for the benefit of political subdivisions in the State of New Hampshire.

Each member of Primex’ is entitled to the categories of coverage set forth below. In addition, Primex® may extend the same coverage to non-members.
However, any coverage extended to a non-member is subject to all of the terms, conditions, exclusions, amendments, rules, policies and procedures
that are applicable to the members of Primex?, including but not limited to the final and binding resolution of all claims and coverage disputes before the
Primex® Board of Trustees. The Additional Covered Party's per occurrence limit shall be deemed included in the Member’s per occurrence limit, and
therefore shall reduce the Member's limit of liability as set forth by the Coverage Documents and Declarations. The limit shown may have been reduced
by claims paid on behalf of the member. General Liability coverage is limited to Coverage A (Personal injury Liability) and Coverage B (Property
Damage Liability) only, Coverage’'s C (Public Officials Errors and Omissions), D (Unfair Employment Practices), E (Employee Benefit Liability) and F
(Educator’s Legal Liability Claims-Made Coverage) are excluded from this provision of coverage.

The below named entity is a member in good standing of the New Hampshire Public Risk Management Exchange. The coverage provided may,
however, be revised at any time by the actions of Primex®. As of the date this certificate is issued, the information set out below accurately reflects the
categories of coverage established for the current coverage year.

This Certificate is issued as a matter of information only and confers no rights upon the certificate holder. This certificate does not amend, extend, or
alter the coverage afforded by the coverage categories listed below.

Participating Member: Member Number: Company Affording Coverage:
Dover Housing Authority 551 NH Public Risk Management Exchange - Primex®
62 Whittier Street Bow Brook Place
Dover, NH 03820-2994 46 Donovan Street
Concord, NH 03301-2624

n e

imits - li,to"ry/

'General Liability (oécurrence Form) Each Occurrence

Professional Liability (describe) General Aggregate
Claims Fire Damage (Any one
[:I Made D Occurrence fire) ge (Any

Med Exp (Any one person)

Automobile Liability

Deductible  Comp and Coll: ggggmgﬂfingle Limit
Any auto Aggregate
X Workers’ Compensation & Employers’ Liability 1/1/2017 1/1/2018 X Statutory
Each Accident $2,000,000
Disease — Each Employee $2,000,000

Disease — Policy Limit

Property (Special Risk includes Fire and Theft) gI::tk(itnll-;?snb &Z‘:La’i‘;ee”:::ed)

Description: Proof of Primex Member coverage only.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER: | | Additional Covered Party | | Loss Payee Primex’ = NH Public Risk Management Exchange

By: Tammy Demuer

Date: 1/3/2017__tdenver@nhprimex.org

Please direct inquires to:
Primex’ Claims/Coverage Services
603-225-2841 phone
603-228-3833 fax




Seymour Osman Community Center
List of Officers and Directors

First Last E-mail Address Director/Officer

Timothy |Granfield* T Director/President
Director/Vice

Christine  |Boston P cancim, el President

Joan Breault e rewmecs Director

Beth Dunton - T ] Director

Nancy Hunt T — e, Director

Attorney

Laurie Young shitiioiiommntny Director

Annette Studebaker |essietSesseielmmmme |Dircctor

Captain

David Terlemezian Director

Attorney

Mark Moceller* RRelesSiereninyssmn Director

Barbara Caron* @ Director

Roxanne |Osgood g Director
Member/Executive

Allan B Krans seEaccusaGauinenmens | [Director

Wendy Tenney waldneanseemsmenetsssingiae (Vember/Treasurer

Kathy Noel o™ e | Member/Secretary

*DHA Board
1.16.2016 Members
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OUELLETTE & ASSOCIATES, PA.

\CERT] FIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

Keith H. Allen, CPA, MS.T. Steven R. Lamontagne, C.P.A.
Mark R. Carrier, C.PA. Gary W. Soucy, C.PA.
Michael R. Dunn, C.PA. Gary A. Wigant, C.PA.
Jonathan A. Hussey, C.PA., M.S.T. C. Joseph Wolverton, C.P.A.

INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANT’S REVIEW REPORT

To The Board of Directors
Seymour Osman Community Center
Dover, New Hampshire

We have reviewed the accompanying financial statements of Seymour Osman Community Center (a
nonprofit organization), which comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2016, and the
related statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended and the
related notes to the financial statements. A review includes primarily applying analytical procedures to
management’s financial data and making inquiries of the Organization’s management. A review is
substantially less in scope than an audit, the objective of which is the expression of an opinion regarding
the financial statements taken as a whole. Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement whether due to fraud or
error.

Accountant’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to conduct the review engagement in accordance with Statements on Standards for
Accounting and Review Services promulgated by the Accounting and Review Services Committee of
the AICPA. Those standards require us to perform procedures to obtain limited assurance as a basis for
reporting whether we are aware of any material modifications that should be made to the financial
statements for them to be in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America. We believe that the results of our procedures provide a reasonable basis for our
conclusion.

Accountant’s Conclusion

Based on our reviews, we are not aware of any material modifications that should be made to the
accompanying financial statements in order for them to be in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the Unites States of America.

Ouellette < Associates, PA.
Certified Public Accountants
February 1, 2017
Lewiston, Maine
1111 Lisbon Street « Lewiston, Maine 04240 « Telephone: (207) 786-0328 « FAX: (207) 783-9377 « www.0acpas.net



SEYMOUR OSMAN COMMUNITY CENTER & YOUTH SAFE HAVEN

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

JUNE 30, 2016
ASSETS
ASSETS
Cash $ 14265
Grants Receivable 15,255
TOTAL ASSETS $ 29,520
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable $ 2,175
Accrued Payroll 1,780
Accrued Compensated Absences 1,381
Refundable Advances 2,729
Due to Dover Housing Authority 20,205
Total Liabilities 28,270
NET ASSETS
Unrestricted 1,250
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS $ 29,520

See accompanying notes and independent accountant’s review report.
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SEYMOUR OSMAN COMMUNITY CENTER & YOUTH SAFE HAVEN

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

SUPPORT AND REVENUE
Contributions:

Dover Housing Authority - Monetary Funding

Dover Housing Authority - Donated Facility

Dover Housing Authority - Donated Overhead Costs

Other Miscellaneous Contributions

Grant Revenue:

21st Century Community Learning Center Grant

Service Fees

Special Events Revenue

Less: Costs of Direct Benefits to Donors
Net Revenue from Special Events

Other Revenue
Interest Income

TOTAL SUPPORT AND REVENUE

EXPENSES
Program Expenses
Management and General

TOTAL EXPENSES

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR

NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR

§ 22,000
87,198
26,857

7,888

83,990
29,464
6,279 -

2,168 -

4,111
11,384
20

272,912

256,618

18,036

274,654
(1,742)

2,992

$ 1,250

See accompanying notes and independent accountant’s review report.
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SEYMOUR OSMAN COMMUNITY CENTER & YOUTH SAFE HAVEN

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

Salaries and Wages
Payroll Taxes and Benefits

Total Personnel Expenses

Rental Expense

Direct Program Expenses - Contracted Services
Direct Program Expenses - Other
Utilities

Supplies and Materials
Professional Fees

Computer Support

Maintenance

Telephone and Internet

Insurance

Training

Travel and Conferences

Printing and Copying

Postage

Bookkeeping

TOTAL EXPENSES

See accompanying notes and independent accountant’s review report.

Program Management

Expenses and General Total
96,579 96,579
15,960 15,960
112,539 112,539
78,478 87,198
20,829 20,829
12,015 12,015
13,190 14,656
1,580 1,580
5,500 5,500
450 450
4,351 4,834
337 337
3,893 3,893
1,719 1,719
888 888
733 733
116 116
- 7,367
$ 256,618 274,654




SEYMOUR OSMAN COMMUNITY CENTER & YOUTH SAFE HAVEN
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Change in Net Assets $

Adjustments to Reconcile Change in Net Assets to

Net Cash From Operating Activities:
(Increase) Decrease in Operating Assets:

Grants Receivable

Increase (Decrease) in Operating Liabilities:
Accounts Payable
Accrued Payroll
Accrued Compensated Absences
Refundable Advances

NET CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Net Payments to Dover Housing Authority

DECREASE IN CASH

CASH AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH AT END OF YEAR $

See accompanying notes and independent accountant’s review report.
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(1,742)

(3,030)

1,931
953
169

2,729

1,010

(4,795)

(3,785)

18,050

14,265



SEYMOUR OSMAN COMMUNITY CENTER
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2016

NOTE I:

NOTE 2:

ORGANIZATION AND NATURE OF ACTIVITIES

Seymour Osman Community Center (SOCC) is a private nonprofit organization affiliated
with the Dover Housing Authority (DHA). The SOCC’s mission is to provide a better
chance. SOCC offers a wide array of opportunities and support in education, life
experiences and technology within the Dover Housing Authority community and beyond
with the aim of helping children and adults by providing educational skills, parental support
and life experiences so the children will be able to better compete in life. SOCC does this
by focusing on the development of grit and work ethic, conflict resolution skills,
establishing clear goals, and increasing confidence of those children and adults in the
community.

The Organization is supported primarily through contributions from DHA, grants and
services fees. Approximately 31% of the Organizations support for the year ended June 30,
2016 came from the 21* Century Community Learning Center Grant which supports the
creation of community learning centers that provide academic enrichment opportunities
during non-school hours for children.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Accounting Method
The accounts of the Organization are maintained in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America on an accrual basis.

Basis of Presentation
The Organization is required to report information regarding its financial position and
activities according to three classes of net assets as follows:

Unrestricted Net Assets - Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed
stipulations.

Temporarily Restricted Net Assets - Net assets subject to donor-imposed
stipulations that limit the use of the donated funds. When the time restriction
ends or when the purpose restriction is accomplished, temporarily restricted net
assets are reclassified to unrestricted net assets and reported in the statement of
activities as net assets released from restrictions. As of June 30, 2016, the
Organization had no temporarily restricted net assets.

Permanently Restricted Net Assets - Net assets subject to donor-imposed
stipulations that they be maintained permanently by the Organization. Generally,
the donors of these assets permit the Organization to use all or part of the income
earned on any related investments for general or specific purposes. As of June
30, 2016, the Organization had no permanently restricted net assets.



SEYMOUR OSMAN COMMUNITY CENTER

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

JUNE 30, 2016

NOTE 2:

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Grants Receivable

Grants receivable consist primarily of state and local community grants. Management
believes that balances carried are fully collectible. Accordingly, no allowance for doubtful
accounts is required. When management determines accounts are uncollectible, they will be
directly charged to operations. Management believes such amounts would be immaterial.

Equipment

It is the Organization’s policy to capitalize equipment with a cost of over $5,000 if
purchased, and a fair value of $5,000 or more if the equipment is donated. Donated
equipment is reported as unrestricted contributions unless the donor has restricted the
donated asset to a specific purpose. Assets donated with explicit restrictions regarding their
use and contributions of cash that must be used to acquire equipment are reported as
restricted contributions. Equipment is depreciated using the straight-line method over the
estimated useful lives of the assets. All of the Organization’s equipment was fully
depreciated at June 30, 2016.

Income Taxes

The Organization is exempt from federal income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the
Internal Revenue Code and did not conduct unrelated business activities. Therefore, no
provision has been made for federal income taxes in the accompanying financial
statements. Management has determined that the Organization does not have any uncertain
tax positions and associated unrecognized benefits that materially impact the financial
statements or related disclosures. Since tax matters are subject to some degree of
uncertainty, there can be no assurance that the Organization’s tax returns will not be
challenged by the taxing authorities and that the Organization will not be subject to
additional tax, penalties and interest as a result of such challenge. Generally, the
Organization’s tax returns remain subject to examination for three years after they were filed
which includes the tax years ended June 30, 2016, 2015 and 2014.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual
results could differ from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Organization considers all highly liquid debt instruments purchased with a maturity of
three months or less to be cash equivalents. The Organization had no cash equivalents at
June 30, 2016.



SEYMOUR OSMAN COMMUNITY CENTER

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

JUNE 30, 2016

NOTE 2:

NOTE 3:

NOTE 4:

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Expense Allocation

The costs of providing various programs and other activities have been summarized on a
functional basis in the Statement of Activities and in the Statement of Functional Expenses.
Accordingly, certain costs have been allocated among the programs and supporting services
benefited.

Subsequent Events

Events that occur after the statement of financial position date but before the financial
statements were available to be issued must be evaluated for recognition or disclosure.
Subsequent events that provide evidence about conditions that existed at the statement of
financial position date are required to be recognized in the accompanying financial
statements. Subsequent events that provide evidence about conditions that existed after
the statement of financial position date require disclosure in the accompanying notes.
Management evaluated the activity of the Organization through February 1, 2017, the
date the financial statements were available to be issued, and concluded that no
subsequent events have occurred that would require recognition in the financial
statements or disclosure in the notes to the financial statements.

GRANTS RECEIVABLE

The Organization has been awarded several grants to further its goal of providing youth
programs, family support and drug and alcohol education. These grants are considered
exchange transactions. Accordingly, revenue is earned as the program service is provided
and expenses are recognized as incurred. Grants Receivables are due in less than one year
and consist of the following at June 30, 2016:

21* Century Community Learning Center Grant $ 15255

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

SOCC and DHA share a few of the same board members.

Donated Facilities

The DHA has donated the use of the facility occupied by SOCC without any stipulation as
to the occupancy period. For this reason the Organization recognized, at fair value, a
contribution and rental expense in the amount of $87,198 for the value of the rent during the
year.




SEYMOUR OSMAN COMMUNITY CENTER

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

JUNE 30, 2016

NOTE 4:

NOTE 5:

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Donated Overhead Costs

The DHA has funded certain other overhead costs on behalf of the SOCC. These costs are
treated as donations as DHA does not require the Organization to reimburse these costs.
Overhead costs funded by DHA are as follows:

Utilities $14.656
Bookkeeping 7.367
Maintenance 4,834

$26,857

Personnel Expenses

The Organization is staffed by employees of DHA. The costs associated with these
employees are reimbursed to DHA and are reported as Salaries and Wages and Payroll
Taxes and Benefits for financial statement reporting purposes. For the year ended June 30,
2016, SOCC paid DHA $112,952 for personnel costs. At June 30, 2016, SOCC owed DHA
$20,205 for June 2016 personnel costs.

Community Center Funding
During the year ended June 30, 2016, DHA provided funding towards the community
centers operations. SOCC utilized funding totaling $22,000 towards the support of its
community center programs.

Financial Support

Presently, DHA has agreed to provide funding to SOCC on an as needed basis. For the year
ended June 30, 2016, DHA provided approximately 50% of the Organization’s total
funding.

CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK

The Organization maintains its cash balances with one financial institution. Accounts are
insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) up to $250,000. The
Organization’s cash balances were fully insured at June 30, 2016.
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Stacey Kearns

Education  Masters in Social Work, University of New Hampshire, Durham, NH 2011
Phi Alpha Honor Society member. Electives in Child and Adolescent Risk and Resiliency,
Program and Resource Development, Social Action in the Dominican Republic,
Therapeutic Interventions with Children.

Bachelor of Arts, Drew University, Madison, NJ 2007
Behavioral Science major, Classics minor, Pan-African Studies minor.
Cum Laude. Courses in psychology, sociology, and anthropology. Drew International
Seminar in West Africa.

Experience Director of Family Services, Dover Housing Authority, Dover, NH 2014—present

e  Oversee staff and afterschool programming at the Seymour Osman Community Center
and Youth Safe Haven and Woodman Park School.

¢ Implement and maintain innovative programming to meet the needs of children and
families of Mineral and Whittier Park.

e Procure essential program support through grant writing and fundraising.

e Represent the Community Center to the general public and reinforce a positive public
perception of Dover’s public housing neighborhood.

e Manage all records related to grant reporting requirements.

e Attend community meetings, conferences and workshops directly related to the mission
of the Community Center and the Dover Housing Authority.

¢ Manage budgets related to program operations.

Service & Training Manager, Old Navy, Manchester, NH and Kittery, ME 2013-2014
¢ Responsible for hiring, training, coaching, motivating, and recognizing.
¢ Responsible for driving results of store performance including sales, brand loyalty,
customer satisfaction, and employee satisfaction.
e Accountable for monitoring and maintaining company policy and procedure, a safe
environment, and store compliance requirements.

Pricing Specialist, Old Navy, Newington, NH 2013
e Lead team in executing pricing and marketing tasks.
e Assisted with managerial tasks including store opening and closing.

Sales Associate, Old Navy, Newington, NH 2011-present
¢ Provide customer service to all customers in the store.
e Primary trainer of new associates assigned to learn the cashier position.

Post Adoption Social Worker, Child & Family Services, Lawrence, MA 2012-2013
¢ Provided home-based family stabilization services to adoptive families.
¢ Provided advocacy and coordination for families to gain access to long-term supportive
services.
¢ Coordinated and facilitated support groups and respite opportunities.

Interim School Social Worker, Winnacunnet High School, Hampton, NH 2011
e Available to students for short-term, crisis and on-going therapeutic support.
o Assessed students who are allegedly being abused or neglected as reported by staff,
students or parents and coordinated reporting to DCYF and administration.
e Homeless Education Agency Liaison coordinating access to education for homeless high
school students in accordance with the McKinney Vento Act.



Counselor, The Summer Camp, Bridgton, ME 2011
e Lived in cabin with girls from low-income families and foster homes acting as positive
role model.
e Facilitated literacy program for all campers, ages 6 through 16.
Intern, Seacoast Youth Services, Seabrook, NH 2010-2011

e Clinical work with individual students at Seabrook Middle School.
e Assisted in program evaluation.
¢ Contributed to writing grants for Seacoast Youth Services and School Administrative

Unit 21.
e Co-facilitated Adolescent Substance Abuse group and Girls Groups for 5" and 6" grade
students.
Group Counselor Intern, Direction Behavioral Health, Seabrook, NH 2010-2011

e  Clinical work with groups.

¢ Maintained positive group culture through modeling healthy relationships and
interactions.

e Ensured client safety.

Intern, Lutheran Social Services, Concord, NH 2009-2010
e Therapeutic Family Connections department
e Assisted Family Specialists with case management including weekly home visits and
independent living skill instruction.
e Supervised visits between foster children and biological families.

Administrative Assistant, Rockingham Nutrition & Meals on Wheels, Brentwood, NH 2007-2010
¢ Client Intake Specialist for agency providing meals and services to the elderly.
¢ Responsible for maintaining client registrations with the State of NH to ensure agency
credit and funding for meals served.
e Supported staff members at 12 meal site locations.

Client Advocate, Roots & Wings Foundation of New Jersey, Denville, NJ 2006-2007
¢ Provided in-home therapy to assist aged out foster youth to gain independence.
e Completed assessments and treatment plans for clients.
e 24-hour on-call responsibility.
e« Case management services and appropriate linkage and advocacy in the community.

Intern, Big Brothers Big Sisters of Morris, Bergen, and Passaic Counties, Parsippany, NJ 2006
e Assisted Match Support Specialists
e Supervision of traditional matches and school/site-based programs.
e Assisted with volunteer and client interviews and training.

Volunteer Work  American Cancer Sociely

Certifications

¢ Relay for Life of Rochester
e Member of planning committee for American Cancer Society walk in 2009, 2010.
e Registration Chair 2009.
e Making Strides Against Breast Cancer
e Event day volunteer 2008, 2010, 2011, 2013

The Summer Camp
¢ Volunteer Counselor 2013

American Heart Association CPR certification



Brandy Barshaw

Experience

2013-present Dover School Department Dover,NH
Principal Assistant

Assist in the main office by answering phones, data entry, filing and maintaining data for
reporting.

Enroll elementary aged children in Woodman Park School.

Supervise recess for 600 children.

Supervise Noon Aides.

Implement and maintain behavior standards for children.

Substitute teach

Work with new families to provide information, ease fears and help them transition into
Woodman Park School.

Provide local, state and national resources to families in need.

Assist teachers, parents and children with daily needs.

2004-present Seymour Osman Community Center Dover, NH
Project Coordinator

Implementing, monitoring and maintaining programs for children grades1-4 at Woodman
Park School.

Enroll elementary school students in SOCC Afterschool Program.

Implements and maintains youth programs at Woodman Park School (primarily) and at
the Seymour Osman Community Center (periodically).

Facilitate academically linked programming for children in grades 1-4.

Manage all essential data collection (at Woodman Park School) relative to 21 CCLC
guidelines.

Monitor program attendance and billing for program participation.

Broker and attend meetings between school personnel and parents to ensure optimal
service delivery specific to children’s needs.

Coordinate support services for families and children in need.

Assist in planning and attends field trips.

Meet regularly with staff at Woodman Park School.

Meet regularly with Director of Family Services.

Create, order and maintain monthly snack schedule for 100 children.

Provide support to contracted employees, AmeriCorps volunteers, interns, and
volunteers.

Youth Development Coordinator

Design and implement educational activities and curriculum for a Kindergarten through
fourth grade after school program.

Establish and maintain relationships with parents, school administration and community
organizations.



e Delegate tasks to volunteers and work study staff.
¢ Generate and distribute monthly newsletter for Dover Housing Authority community.

2001-2003 Strafford County Head Start Dover, NH
Chairperson, Strafford County Parent Advisory Board
e Responsibilities included hiring an firing of staff, managing fiscal budget, and
coordination of county activities such as fundraising and open enrollment period.
e Represented county at New England regional conferences.
e Delegated tasks to parents and regional Head Start sites.

2001-2002 New Hampshire Head Start Dover, NH
Chairperson, New Hampshire State Advisory Board
e Coordinated state wide conferences

e Facilitated discussions regarding agency concerns: particularly proposed changes
nationally and the potential effects at the state level.

2001-2003 In-Home Day Care Dover, NH
Owner
e Operated an in-home day care for five children ages newborn to seven.
e Coordinated in-home therapeutic services for a child with autism.

e Managed and generated monthly invoices for customer self-pay accounts and New
Hampshire Title XX

Education
2005-2007 Southern New Hampshire University Portsmouth, NH
Bachelor of Arts
e Major Social Science
e 35GPA
o Not complete

Additional Skills
e Computer skills include Microsoft Word, Excel, Publisher, Power Point, and Internet
applications.

e 100+ hours of Professional Development in various areas

Certifications
e American Heart Association Heart Saver and First Aid
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Paul Leather
Deputy Commissioner of Education
Tel. 603-271-3801

Virginia M. Barry, Ph.D.
Commissioner of Education
Tel. 603-271-3144

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION
101 Pleasant Street
Concord, N.H. 03301
FAX 603-271-1953
Citizens Services Line 1-800-339-9900

June 13, 2016

Her Excellency, Governor Margaret Wood Hassan
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, NH 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Education, Bureau of Integrated Programs to amend a grant
agreement on a sole source basis with the Dover Housing Authority, Dover, NH (Vendor Code
#159988), by increasing the price limitation by $95,237.50 from $96,735.15 to $191,972.65 and
extending the end date from June 30, 2016 to June 30, 2017 to continue to offer extended day
programming for youth and their families, effective upon Governor and Council approvail. item
originally approved by Governor and Council on 06/19/13 (Iitem #202), renewed on 06/18/14
(item #145), and renewed on 06/24/15 {ltem #158). 100% Federal Funds.

Funding is available in the account titled 21st Century Community Title IV, as follows:

06-56-56-563010-75380000-072-500577 Grants-Federal $95,237.50
EXPLANATION

The Department went out to RFP for these grant funds in January 2013 with the intent of
including a renewal option. The renewal option was included in the Governor and Council letter
but not stated in the contract warranting that this amendment be submitted on a sole source
basis. This is the fourth year of a five year grant. The United States Department of Education
legislation allows for five-year 215t Century Community Learning Center grants to serve youth and
their families during the out of school time hours. Grants are awarded annudlly pending the
receipt of an Annual Performance Report that indicates sufficient progress and the availability of
federal funds.

New Hampshire anticipates a FY 2017 grant award in the amount of $5,716.698.00 from the
United States Department of Education under Title VB, the 215! Century Community Learning
Center progrom. This program provides grants to inner city and rural schools, community based
organizations, youth deveiopment agencies and other educational agencies to provide
expanded learning opportunities for children outside of regular school hours in a safe
environment. The programs will offer students a broad array of additional services, programs,
and activities such as tutorial services, youth development activities, drug and violence

TDD Access: Relay NH 1-800-735-2964
EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER- EQUAL EDUCATIONAL OPPORTUNITIES



Her Excellency, Governor Margaret Wood Hassan
and The Honorable Council

Page 2 of 2

June 13, 20146

prevention, counseling programs, art, music, recreation programs, and technology education.
These programs and services are designed to reinforce and complement the regular academic
program of the participating students.

The program services provided by the grant cited above will be coordinated by 1h¢ Dover
Housing Authority in collaboration with the Dover School District. This collaborative approach will
serve elementary Dover School District youth and their families.

The competition process includes: a Bidders Conference, publication of the RFP, technical
support during the proposal writing process, review and scoring of the proposal by three
reviewers, and award determinations based on this review process. The reviewers for all
proposals include representation from experienced 21st Century Community Learning Center
and school day professionals, higher education, state agencies and community based
organizations.

in the event Federal Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not be requested to

support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

Virgmi M. Barry, Ph D
Commissioner of Education

VMB:SBS
Enclosures

TDD Access: Retay NH 1-800-735-2964
EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER- EQUAL EDUCATIONAL OPPORTUNITIES



AMENDMENT TO
GRANT AGREEMENT

Now come the New Hampshire Department of Education, Bureau of Integrated Programs, hercinafter
“the Agency,” and The Dover Housing Authority, Dover, NH, hereinafter “the Grantee”, and, pursuant to
an agreement between the parties that was approved by Governor and Council on 06/19/13 (Item #202),
renewed 06/18/14 (Item #145) and renewed 06/24/15 (Item #158), hereby agree to modify same as
follows:

1. Agreement, General Provisions, Block 1.6, remove June 30, 2016 and replace with June 30, 20717.

2. Agreement, General Provisions, Block 1.8, remove $96,735.15 and replace with $191,972.65.

3. Remove OBM Form 1, Project Application Budget and Designation of Application Manager/Project
Manager, with Project Period July 1, 2015 through June 30, 2016 with a Budget of $96,735.15 and
Insert OBM Form 1, Project Application Budget and Designation of Application Manager/Project
Manager, with Project Period July 1, 2016 through June 30, 2017 with a budget of $95,237.50.

4. All other provisions of the agreement shall remain in full force and effect.

This modification of an existing agreement is hereby incorporated by reference to the existing agreement

by the parties and must be attached to the said agreement. This modification shall be effective upon the

date of approval from the Governor and the Executive Council for the period of July 1, 2016 through
June 30, 2017.

IN WITNESS WHEREQF, the parties, hereto have set their hands as of the day and year below written.

THE STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

Department of Education (Agen%ﬂ/\f\j{
By: %MMM, /)\ .

Virgir@ M. Barry, Ph. D, Commissioner of Education

Dover Housing Authority
Name o ity (Grante /
By: / /A N7 . /

‘Dif’ect\gr

Allan Krans{Eke
STATE OF i o
County of _ Shya £Lvdl

On this the_ And day of TJone_ . 2016 before me, !A )mdfj A ’Qanmj Lthe
undersigned officer, personally appeared _ _Allan f Kians who acknowledged

himself/herself to be the _£ x ecorlive Dire cdbome— of Dg}c'/Hmin?/Lv%'{'j

a Gwmkc , and that (s)he as such _ ésecarye Dirccdpe , being authorized so to do,
executed the foregoing instrument for the purposes therein contained, by signing the name of the

vgndee by himself/herself as _Fxec, e Direc for

In witness whereof, 1 hereto set my hand and official seal,

ce of the Peace

Notary Public)usti

Page 1 of 2



Approved as to form, substance and execution by the Attorney General this ¢/  day of

Tt ne 2016,

Division of Attorney General Office
Q-

By: ( '19 m(j 4/& '(_/Qg;z_,

Approved by the Governor and Council this day of ,2016

By:

Page 2 of 2
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.
0 "(0 From the Desk o

May 16, 2016
Suzanne Birdsall Stone

Re: Relationship between the Dover Housing Authority and the Seymour Osman Community
Center, Inc.

Dear Suzanne;

I am the Executive Director of the Dover Housing Authority (DHA), 62 Whittier Street, and also
the Executive Director of the Seymour Osman Community Center (SOCC), Inc. located at 40
Hampshire Circle, both in Dover New Hampshire. The physical structure known as the SOCC is
located in the middle of the DHA residential neighborhood.

The Dover Housing Authority is a statutory entity pursuant to RSA 203. The Seymour Osman
Community Center, Inc. is a not for profit corporation registered in the State of New Hampshire.

You asked me to describe the relationship between the DHA and the SOCC.

In a nutshell, the SOCC is the social service arm of the DHA. Social services for our residents
come from the SOCC. The DHA provides permanent housing using federal funds for residents
who qualify due to low income. The DHA owns a family residential neighborhood (on 4
contiguous streets) consisting of 184 family apartments, the residents of which all receive federal
subsidies for permanent housing.

All funding for the operation of the SOCC comes from the DHA except the 21* Century grant
and some small fundraising efforts by the SOCC. The full-time staff at the SOCC consists of
one person. She receives salary and benefits through the DHA. She is paid with a DHA check.
The physical space housing the SOCC (ie. the Community Center) is owned by the DHA. All
expenses of SOCC are paid through and by the DHA.

The DHA and SOCC have separate boards of directors. The members of the DHA Board are
appointed by the City Manager pursuant to state statute. The members of the SOCC Board are
appointed by the DHA Board. Some DHA board members serve on the Board of the SOCC.

This relationship has existed for over 20 years.

£V WWhittiar Ctrant NAuvar Naur Hamnehira N209N0 EN2.7A7 EQNA A LbraneAmuarhAanicinaantharinhg Aarn
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Sincerely,

Allan B. Krans
Executive Director

Cc. Stacey Kearns, Wendy Tenney
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RESOLUTION NO 2016-02-23-03

WHEREAS, the 21 Century Grant requires a signed contract
between the Dover Housing Authority, Fiscal Agent for Seymour Osman
Community Center, and the State of New Hampshire Department of
. Education,

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that Allan B. Krans, Executive
Director, is duly authorized to enter a contract, on behalf of Dover Housing
Authority, with the State of New Hampshire Department of Education for
fiscal year end June 30, 2017 funding, and is further authorized to execute
any documents which may, in his judgment, be desirable or necessary to
effect the purpose of this vote.

Above is a true and correct copy of the resolution passed by the
Commissioners of the Dover Housing Authority at their reguiar meeting
February 23, 2016. '

| further certify that the above resolution was in full force and effect on
the date the grant agreement was signed.

Chair

b/2/ 2011

7(c)




TITLE XVII

HOUSING AND REDEVELOPMENT

CHAPTER 203

HOUSING AUTHORITIES LAW

Section 203:4

203:4 Creation of Housing Authority. - In each municipality, as herein defined, of the state there is
hereby created a public body corporate and politic to be known as the housing authority of the
municipality; provided that such authority shall not transact any business or exercise its powers as
hereunder until the governing body of the municipality by resolution adopted by majority vote of those
present at any reguiar or special meeting shall have declared that there is need for an authority to
function in such municipality. In towns, such resolution must be adopted by majority vote of those
present and voting, by use of ballot, if at an annual meeting; and if such resolution is to be acted upon at
a special meeting, the procedure for adoption shall be the same as that prescribed for the making of
appropriations at special meetings as provided in RSA 31:5. in any suit, action or proceeding involving
the validity or enforcement of or relating to any contract of the authority, the authority shall be
conclusively deemed to have become established and authorized to transact business and exercise its
powers hereunder upon proof of the creation of an authority and of the adoption of a resolution by the
governing body declaring the need for the authority. Such resolution or resolutions shall be deemed
sufficient if it declares that there is need for an authority. A copy of such resolution duly certified by the
clerk shall be admissible in evidence in any suit, action or proceeding.

Source. 1941, 222:4. RL 169:4. 1947, 169:3, eff. May 29, 1947.
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MARUH NEETING

Yareh 4, 1948

The regular monthly wmeeting of the City Commecil was held
this Thursdsy evening, Mareh 4, 1948, 8 P.M., in the Cowncll
Chambers, Munisipal Building.

At roll eall the following members wsre pressnt, His Honor
¥ayor Simom . Rerkos, Councilmén Breen, Christensen, Dunaway,
Hall, HMethes, Mitchall, Bmalley and Tuttle.

s e aw

fhe follswing »esolution was adopted on a roll call vote of
8 yeas, O nmes, and ¢ sbaent on ¢ moticn by Breen sesondsd by
Halle

4 RESOLUTION PROVIDING POR THE ORGANIZATION
OF A ROUSING AUTEORITY FOR THE CITY OF
DOVER, REW HANPSHIRE

BE IT EESOLYED BY ¥HE CITY COUNGCIL OF TEE CITY OF DOVER,
KEW HAMPRHIRES

Seation 1. That the 8ity Commell of the City of Bover,
How Hampshire, hereby dstermines, finds and desclares in pursusnce
of section 4 of the Housing Authoritieas law of the State of Xew
‘ s that there is need for a housing authority to function
in the City of Dover, WNew Hampshire.

feotion 2. In sscerdancs with the foregeing finding, a
muntoipal housing authsrity for the City of Dover, Hew Hampshire,

bEp, and hereby ls, authorissd to funsiion end to transact eny.
basingss snd exercise its pawers.

Hoto: Use the regulay form for yesolutiona snd have the Mayor
or other official approve when such approval 1s required,

It was voted that the City Msnager appoint the five members
of the Houming Autherity.



CERTIPICATE

The wnderslgned hereby certifies as followa:

1. That he 1es the duly gqualified end acting City Clerk of
the City of Dover, herein oalled the “Municipality®, and the kseper
of the records of the Munieipality, inoluding the Journal of
proceedings of the City Councll, herein celled the “Governing
Body"y '

2. That the attashsd resclution is & true and correct copy
of the resolution us fimally adopted gt a meeting of the Governing
Body held on the fourth day of Msrch, 1948, end dvly recordsd in
‘his offlce;

3« That 3aid meeting was duly ccnvened end hold in all
respests in acoordmmce with law and to the extent required b{e
lav due and proper notisce of such meeting was glven; that e legal
quorus was present throughout the meeting, and a legally sufflclent
number of membars of the Governing Body voted in the proper
marmer and for the gdoption of seld resolutiony and all other
requiremsnts ind pro¢esdings wnder law incident to the proper
. adoption or the passuge of gald resolution, including publication
if reguired by law, have Bednr duly fulfilled, carried out and
ctherwise observed;

4+ That if an impression of the seal hes besn affixed below,
1t conatitutes the officlal eeal of the Municipality and this
ssrtificate is horaby execuied wnder such offlcial seal. If no-
gesl haa been affixed below, the ¥unilcipality does not have and
1s not legally required to have an officisl seal;

5 That the undersigned is duly suthorized to execute this
sertifiecats.

IB. WITHESS WHEREOF tho wmdsrsignsd has hereunto set his hand
this 20th day of September, 1950.

(8. & LF —— :

= / Ctty Clerk



State of Nefu Hampshire
epartment of State

CERTIFICATE

I. William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby
certify that THE SEYMOUR OSMAN COMMUNITY CENTER AND YOUTH SAFE
HAVEN is a New Hampshire nonprofit corporation formed April 29, 2002. T further
certify that it is in good standing as far as this oftice is concerned, having filed the

return(s) and paid the fees required by law.

In TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I hereto

set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New I[Hampshire,
this 20" day of January A.D. 2016

ey Skt~

William M. Gardner
Secretary of State




N ® DATE (MWDD/YYYY)
ACORD CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE 6/8/2016

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(les) must be endorsed. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to
the terms and conditiona of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the
certificate holder In lleu of such endorsemant(s).

PRODUCER °E!°e,',‘TE‘.‘°T Kathleen Flibotte, CISR

D.B. Warlick & Co. PHONE = (603) 964-6065 Lﬁm(so:usd—uzs
P O Box 1260 | SoiEss kflibotte@dbwarlick . com

69 Lafayette Rd. INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC 8
North Hampton NH 03862 msurera:Philadelphia Indemnity

INSURED wsyrer g Mount Vernon Fire Insurance

Seymour Osman Community Center INSURER G :

c/o Dover Housing Authority INSURER D :

62 Whittier St INSURERE :

Dover NH 03820 INSURER F :

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER:15-16 Revised Mastar REVISION NUMBER; 1

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOO
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN {S SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

[ IYPE OF isumace Msalwo| eouevwuwasn | QRGRNGD [imanatey s
QENERAL UABILITY EACH OCCURRENCE s 1,000,000
X | COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY | PREMISES (Ea occwrence) | $ 100,000
A | cLams mace OCCUR F/za/ztus P/“/”“ MED EXP (Any cnepersan) | 3 5,000
- PERSONAL 8 ADVINJURY |§ 1,000,000
) GENERAL AGGREGATE $ 2,000,000
GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG | $ 2,000,000
x| pouey[ | Vi Loc s T s
MBINED SINGLE LIVMIT
ﬂTOHOBILE UABILTY (Ea ascident) 3
|1 ANy AuTO BODILY INJURY {Per person) | $
ALL OWKED SCHEDULED BODILY INJURY (Per csident) | §
Bl NON-QWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE
|| HIRED AUTOS AUTOS  (Por accident) $
s
UMBRELLA LIAB OCCUR EACH OCCURRENCE $
| excess we CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE s
oeo | | remenTions $
WORKERS COMPENSATION ] we sTare T Jone-
AND EMPLOYERS' UABILITY YIN IS EB.
ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE D NIA E.L. EACH ACCIDENT s
OFFICERMEMBER EXCLUDED?
{(llmd;:ory.g m E.L DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEH $
3, CascN r
OFSCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS beiow E.L DISEASE - POUICY LIMIT | §
B |Diractors & Officers 3 8/29/2015 B/29/2016 | EgqgenCiaima 1,000,000
Agoregaie ’ ‘
Employmant Practices 3 /29/2015 B/29/2016 | gach Claim & Aggragste $1,000,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (Attach ACORD 101, Additional Romarks Scheduls, i more space Is required)
Evidence of coverage

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN

NH Department of Education ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

State Office Park South
101 Pleasant Street AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

Concord, NH 03301-3860
=
Edward Young/KF GEtrmae, T (7

ACORD 25 (2010/05) ® 1988-2010 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reservad.
INS025 (20100%) 01 The ACORD name and logo are registared marks of ACORD




<P HA Group pmecen e

Cheshire, CT 06410-0189 www.housingcenter.com
CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE
ID: 481 Issue Date: 06/08/2016

Insured: Dover Housing Authority

Address: 62 Whittier Street
Dover, NH 03820-2994

Coverages
Type of Insurance Policy Number Limits
Commercial Liability ! i General Aggregate: $ 2,000,000
(X] CoverageA;Bodily Injury and Per Occurrence: $ 2,000,000
Property Damage Liability: Effective Date: Personal and Adv In.j: $ 2,000,000
Qccurrenge 06/30/2015 12:01AM | Fire Damage Sub-Limit: $ 300,000
[X] CoverageB:Personal and Expiration Date: Athletic g po(r)t SUb'L'm't' $ 250.000
Advertising Injury Liability: 06/30/2016 12:01 AM er Qecurrence: '
Occurrence Aggregate: $ 250,000

Description: Proof of Insurance

Certificate NH Department of Education
Holder: State Office Park South
101 Pleasant Street
Concord, NH 033013860

Remarks:

Company: Housing Authority Risk Retention Group, Inc.

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES LISTED ABOVE HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED
ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR
CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WI|TH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS CERTIFICATE
MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS
SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS, EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY
HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY CLAIMS PAID. THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION
ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS CERTIFICATE DOES NOT
AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES ABOVE.

Should any of the above described policies be cancelled before the expiration date thereof, the issuing company wiil
endeavor to mail 90 days written notice to the cedificate holder named above, but failure to mail such notice shall
impose no obligations or liability of any kind upon the company, its agents, or representatives.

I” Mortgagee WV Cetrtificate Holder
ga../ [ Loss Payee OJ Other
Sianature 6f Authérized Representative [J Additional Insured

HAl Group~ | 189 Commerce Caurl, Cheshire, CT 06410 | HAI Group is a registered trademark for a family of companies which
includes Housing Authority Risk Retention Graup. Inc ; Housing Authority Property Insurance, A Mutual Company; Housing
Entarprise Insurance Company, Inc.; and Housing Insurance Services, inc. (DBA Housing tnsurance Agency Services in NY ang Mi).



o DATE (MMDDNVY
ACORD  EVIDENCE OF COMMERCIAL PROPERTY INSURANCE  |eopanvts

THIS EVIDENCE OF COMMERCIAL PROPERTY INSURANCE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS
UPON THE ADDITIONAL INTEREST NAMED BELOW. THIS EVIDENCE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER
THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES BELOW. THIS EVIDENCE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN
THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE ADDITIONAL INTEREST.

CONTAGT PERSON AND Amnesm_ﬁu; (800) 873-0242 COMPANY NAME AND ADDRESS [ wascwo: 10069
Housing Insurance Services Inc. Housing Authority Property Insurance, A Mutua! Company
189 Commerce Court - P. Q, Box 189 189 Commerce Court - P.O, Box 189
Cheshire CT 06410 Cheshire CT 06410
X o (203) 2121334 l B s IF MULTIPLE COMPANIES, COMPLETE SEPARATE FORM FOR EACH
. 7916 . POLICY TYPE
fZESmg 7916 ‘hus cooe Commercial Property
. PRUSIOMERID S [ Y
NAMED INSURED AXD ADDRESS LOAN KUMBER POLICY NUMBER
Oover Housing Authority 1
62 Whittier Street EFFECTIVE DATE EXPIRATION OATE
Dover NH 038202394 06002016 06R072017 ‘ [ ) TermiNATED IF crecke
ADDITIONAL NAMED INSURED|S) THIS REPLACES PRIOR EVIDENCE DATED:

PROPERTY INFORMATION {Use REMARKS on page 2, it more space Is required) 3 BUILDING OR ) BUSINESS PERSONAL PROPERTY

LOCATION [DRSCRIPTION tf CHECKED, BPP LIMIT:  $175,600
See attached schedule - HACP 1052
THIS POLICY IS SUBJECT TO A CATASTROPHE UMIT

THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING
ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS EVIDENCE OF PROPERTY INSURANCE MAY
BE 1SSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS, EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS
OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

COVERAGE INFORMATION PERILSINSURED | |easic | (eRoap | |sPecia [X |
COMMERCIAL PROPERTY COVERAGE AMOUNT OF INSURANCE:  § 63712287 DED: $10.000
YES| NO [N/ .

§J BUSINESS INCOME  [7] RENTAL VALUE X I YES, LIMIT: See HACP 1052 I Ji\clual Loss Sustained; # of months:
BLANKET COVERAGE . If YES, Indicate value(s) reporied on proparty identiflad above: $
TERRORISM COVERAGE X Allach Disclosure Notice / DEC

1S THERE A TERRORISM-SPECIFIC EXCLUSION? X

1S DOMESTIC TERRORISM EXCLUDED? X
LIMITED FUNGUS COVERAGE X HYES, LiMIT: $15 000 DED: $10,000
FUNGUS EXCLUSION (it “YES", specify organizalion’s form used) See Policy
REPLACEMENT COST X
AGREED VALUE
COINSURANCE X | VES, % Equivalent to Agreed Value
EQUIPMENT BREAKDOWN (If Applicabte) X 1 YES, LIMIT: £50 000,000 DED: §5 009
ORDINANCE OR LAW - Coverage for loss to undamaged portion of bidg  [X I YES, LIMIT: Inc. in Building Limit DED: $10.000

- Demafilion Costs X if YES, LIMIT: Demo and Incr. Cost CED: $40,000
- Ingr. Cost of Construction X If YES, LIMIT: $250,000 DED:

EARTH MOVEMENT (if Appiicable) X If YES, LIMIT: DED:
FLOOD (If Applicable) X { YES, LIMIT: DED:
WIND / HAIL (if Subject to Different Provisions) X HYES, LIMIT: DED: 5 %
PERMISSION TO WAIVE SUBROGATION IN FAVOR OF MORTGAGE . .
HOLDER PRIOR TO LOSS Waiver must be in witing prior to loss
Eanthquake X fYES, LMIT: _$640,000 DED: $64.000
CANCELLATION

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE
DELIVERED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

ADDITIONAL INTEREST

MORTGAGEE CONTRACT OF BALE LENDER SERVICING AGENT NAME AND ADDRESS
LENDERS LO8s PAYABLE | X | Cenificate Holder
NAME AND ADORESS

NH Department of Education
Stale Office Park South

101 Pleasant Street
Concerd NH 033013860 AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 28 (2011111} Page 1012 © 2003-2011 ACO! ORPOKATION. All rights reserved.
The ACORD name and logo are registerad marks of ACORD
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OUELLETTE & ASSOCIATES, PA.

\CERTIFIED FUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

Keith H. Allen, CP.A, MST. George A. Roberge, C.P.A.
Mark R. Carrier, CPA. Gary A Wigant, CP.A.
Steven R. Lamontagne, CP.A. C. Joseph Wolverton, C.ILA, CV.A.

INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANT’S REVIEW REPORT

To The Board of Directors
Seymour Osman Community Center & Youth Safe Haven
Dover, New Hampshire

We have reviewed the accompanying statement of financial position of Seymour Osman Community
Center & Youth Safe Haven (a nonprofit organization) as of June 30, 2015, and the related statements of
activitics, functional expenses and cash flows for the year then ended. A review includes primarily applying
analytical procedures to management’s financial data and making inquiries of Organization management. A
review is substantially less in scope than an audit, the objective of which is the expression of an opinion
regarding the financial statements as a whole. Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America and for
designing, implementing, and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation
of the financial statements.

Our responsibility is to conduct the review in accordance with Statements on Standards for Accounting and
Review Services issued by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require
us to perform procedures to obtain limited assurance that there are no material modifications that should be
made to the financial statements. We believe that the results of our procedures provide a reasonable basis
for our report.

Based on our review, with the exception of the matter described in the following paragraph, we are not
aware of any material modifications that should be made to the accompanying financial statements in order
for them to be in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Ouellette &7 Associates, PA.
Certified Public Accountants
January 13, 2016
Lewiston, Maine

1111 Lisbon Street « Lewiston, Maine 04240 o Telephone: (207) 786-0328 o FAX: (207) 783-9377 www.oacpas.net



SEYMOUR OSMAN COMMUNITY CENTER & YOUTH SAFE HAVEN

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

JUNE 30, 2015

ASSETS
ASSETS
Cash $
Grants Receivable
TOTAL ASSETS N

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable $
Accrued Payroll
Accrued Compensated Absences
Due to Dover Housing Authority

Total Liabilities
NET ASSETS

Unrestricted
Total Net Assets

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS S

See accompanying notes and independent accountant’s review report.

-

18,050

12,225

30,275

244
827
1,212

25,000

27,283

2,992

2,992

30,275



SEYMOUR OSMAN COMMUNITY CENTER & YOUTH SAFE HAVEN

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Temporarily

Unrestricted Restricted Total
SUPPORT AND REVENUE
Contributions:
Dover Housing Authority - Monetary Funding $ 23,000 $ - S 23,000
Dover Housing Authority - Donated Facility 87,198 - 87,198
Dover Housing Authority - Donated Overhead Costs 26,857 - 26,857
Other Miscellaneous Contributions 6,304 - 6,804
Grant Revenue:
21st Century Comimunity Learning Center Grant 86,451 - 86,451
Service Fees 25,400 - 25,400
Special Events Revenue 17,423 - -
Less: Costs of Direct Benefits to Donors 2,850 - -
Net Revenue from Special Events 14,573 14,573
Other Revenue 11,085 - 11,085
Interest Income 16 - 16
TOTAL SUPPORT AND REVENUE 281,384 - 281,384
EXPENSES v
Program Expenses 230,141 - . 230,141
Manageiment and General 18,036 - 18,036
TOTAL EXPENSES 248,177 - 248,177
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 33,207 - 33,207
NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR (30,215) - (30,215)
NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR S 2,992 $ - S 2,99

See accompanying notes and independent accountant’s review report.

.30



SEYMOUR OSMAN COMMUNITY CENTER & YOUTH SAFE HAVEN

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Salaries and Wages
Payroll Taxes and Benefits

Total Personnel Expenses

Rental Expense

Direct Program Expenses - Contracted Services
Direct Program Expenses - Other
Utilities

Supplies and Materials
Professional Fees

Computer Support

Maintenance

Telephone and Internet
Insurance

Training

Travel and Confecrences

Printing and Copying

Postage

Bookkeeping

TOTAL EXPENSES

See accompanying notes and independent accountant’s review report.

Program Management

Expenses and General Total
89,838 89,838
4,761 4,761
94,599 94,599
78,478 87,198
10,914 10,914
13,497 13.497
13,190 14,656
1,623 1,623
4,675 4,675
1,221 1,221
4,351 4,834
1,194 1,194
3,957 3,957
1,082 1,082
785 785
463 463
112 [12
- 7,367
S 230,141 248,177




SEYMOUR OSMAN COMMUNITY CENTER & YOUTH SAFE HAVEN
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Change in Net Assets $
Adjustments to Reconcile Change in Net Assets to

Net Cash From Operating Activities:
(Increase) Decrease in Operating Assets:
Grants Receivable
Increase (Decrease) in Operating Liabilities:
Accounts Payable
Accrued Payroll
Other Accrued Liabilities

NET CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Net Payments to Dover Housing Authority

INCREASE IN CASH

CASH AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH AT END OF YEAR S

See accompanying notes and independent accountant’s review report.

-5-

33,207

8,446

(1,234)
(32)

(13,368)

27,019

(4,000)

23,019

_(4969)

18,050



SEYMOUR OSMAN COMMUNITY CENTER & YOUTH SAFE HAVEN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2015

NOTE 1:

NOTE 2:

ORGANIZATION AND NATURE OF ACTIVITIES

Seymour Osman Community Center & Youth Safe Haven (SOCC) is a private nonprofit
organization affiliated with the Dover Housing Authority (DHA). SOCC was formed by
DHA and both organizations share a few of the same board members. I[n addition, DHA is
currently the primary supporter of SOCC. The SOCC’s mission is to provide a better
chance. SOCC offers a wide array of opportunities and support in education,  life
expericnces and technology within the Dover Housing Authority community and beyond
with the aim of helping children and adults by providing educational skills, parental support
and life experiences so the children will be able to better compete in life. SOCC does this
by focusing on the devclopment of grit and work ethic. conflict resolution skills,
establishing clear goals, and increasing confidence of those children and adults in the
commniunity.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Accounting Method
The accounts of the Organization are maintained in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America on an accrual basis.

Basis of Presentation :
The Organization is required to report information regarding its financial position and
activities according to three classes of net assets as follows:

Unrestricted Net Assets - Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed
stipulations.

Temporarily Restricted Net Assets - Net assets subject to donor-imposed
stipulations that limit the use of the donated funds. When the time restriction
ends or when the purpose restriction is accomplished, temporarily restricted net
assets are reclassified to unrestricted net assets and reported in the statement of
activities as net assets released from restrictions. As of June 30, 2015. the
Organization had no temporarily restricted net assets.

Permanently Restricted Net Assets - Net assets subject to donor-imposed
stipulations that they be maintained permanently by the Organization. Generally.
the donors of these assets permit the Organization to use all or part of the income
earned on any related investments for general or specific purposes. As of June
30. 2015, the Organization had no permanently restricted net assets.



SEYMOUR OSMAN COMMUNITY CENTER & YOUTH SAFE HAVEN

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

JUNE 30, 2015

NOTE 2:

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Grants Receivable

Grants receivable consist primarily of state and local community grants. Management
belicves that balanccs carried arc fully collectible. Accordingly, no allowance for doubtful
accounts is required. When management determines accounts are uncollectible, they will be
directly charged to operations. Management believes such amounts would be immaterial.

Equipment

It is the Organization’s policy to capitalize equipment with a cost of over $5,000 if
purchased, and a fair value of $5.000 or more if the equipment is donated. Donated
equipment is reported as unrestricted contributions unless the donor has restricted the
donatcd asset to a specific purpose. Assets donated with explicit restrictions regarding their
use and contributions of cash that must be used to acquire equipment are reported as
restricted contributions. Equipment is depreciated using the straight-line method over the
estimated useful lives of the assets. All of the Organization’s equipment was fully
depreciated at June 30, 2015.

Income Taxes

The Organization is exempt from federal income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the
Internal Revenue Code and did not conduct unrelated business activities. Therefore, no
provision has been made for federal income taxes in the accompanying financial
statements. Management has determined that the Organization does not have any uncertain
tax positions and associated unrecognized benefits that materially impact the financial
statements or related disclosures. Since tax matters are subject to some degree of
uncertainty, there can be no assurance that the Organization’s tax returns will not be
challenged by the taxing authorities and that the Organization will not be subject to
additional tax, penalties and interest as a result of such challenge. Generally, the
Organization’s tax returns remain subject to examination for three years after they were filed
which includes the tax years ended June 30, 2015, 2014 and 2013.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles gencrally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly. actual
results could differ from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Organization considers all highly liquid debt instruments purchased with a maturity of
three months or less to be cash equivalents. The Organization had no cash equivalents at
June 30, 2015.



SEYMOUR OSMAN COMMUNITY CENTER & YOUTH SAFE HAVEN

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

JUNE 30, 2015

NOTE 2:

NOTE 3:

NOTE 4:

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Subsequent Events

Events that occur after the statement of financial position date but before the financial
statements were available to be issued must be evaluated for recognition or disclosure.
Subsequent events that provide evidence about conditions that existed at the statement of
financial position date are required to be recognized in the accompanying financial
statements. Subsequent events that provide evidence about conditions that existed after
the statement of financial position date require disclosure in the accompanying notes.
Management evaluated the activity of the Organization through January 13, 2016, the
date the financial statements were available to be issued, and concluded that no
subsequent events have occurred that would require recognition in the financial
statements or disclosure in the notes to the financial statements.

GRANTS RECEIVABLE

The Organization has been awarded several grants to further its goal of providing youth
programs, family support and drug and alcohol cducation. These grants are considered
exchange transactions. Accordingly, revenue is earned as the program service is provided
and expenses are recognized as incurred. Grants Receivables are due in less than.one year
and consist of the following at June 30, 2015:

21* Century Community Learning Center Grant $ 12225

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

SOCC and DIIA share a few of the same board members.

Donated Facilities

The DHA has donated the use of the facility occupicd by SOCC without any stipulation as
o the occupancy period. For this reason the Organization recognized, at fair value, a
contribution and rental expense in the amount of $87,198 for the value of the rent during the
year.

Donated Overhead Costs

The DHA has funded certain other overhead costs on behalf of the SOCC. These costs are
treated as donations as DHA does not require the Organization to reimburse these costs.
Overhead costs funded by DHA are as follows:

Utilities $14,656
Bookkeeping 7.367
Maintenance 4.834

$26.857



SEYMOUR OSMAN COMMUNITY CENTER & YOUTH SAFE HAVEN

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

JUNE 30. 2015

NOTE 4:

NOTE 5:

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Personnel Expenses

The Organization is staffed by employees of DHA. The costs associated with these
employees are reimbursed to DHA and are reported as Salaries and Wages and Payroll
Taxes and Benefits for financial statement reporting purposes. For the year ended June 30;
2015, SOCC paid DHA $94,599 for personnel costs. At June 30, 2015, SOCC owed DHA
$25,000 for June 2015 personnel costs.

Community Center Funding
During the year ended June 30, 2015. DHA provided funding towards the community
centers operations. SOCC utilized funding totaling $23.000 towards the support of its
community center programs.

Financial Support

Presently, DHA has agreed to provide funding to SOCC on an as needed basis. For the year
ended June 30, 2015, DHA provided approximately 49% of the Organization’s total
funding.

CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK

The Organization maintains its cash balances with one financial institution. Accounts are
insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) up to $250,000. The
Organization’s cash balances were fully insured at June 30, 2015.

9-



DOVER HOUSING AUTHORITY
SEYMOUR OSMAN COMMUNITY CENTER & YOUTH SAFE HAVEN

MISSION

A Better Chance

Helping children and adults by providing .
educational skills, parental support and
life experiences so children will be able to

better compete in life. |

40 Hamoshire Circle Dover. NH 03820  Ph: 603.749.6692  Web: www.dhasocc.org
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DOVER HOUSING AUTHORITY

SEYMOUR OSMAN COMMUNITY CENTER & YOUTH SAFE HAVEN

POSITIONS AND SALARIES

Director of Family Services (Stacey Kearns)
Salary $46,125.00

Benefits $19,722.66
25% of salary paid out of 21° Century = $11,531.25
25% of benefits paid out of 21" Century = $4,930.66

21* Century Project Coordinator (Brandy Barshaw)
Salary $21,665.90

Benefits $1,904.12

Homework Lab Leader I (To be hired by Sept. 1)
4 hours/week at $17.00/hour for 37 weeks

Salary $2,516.00
Benefits $229.58

Homework Lab Leader I (To be hired by Sept. 1)
5 hours/week at $17.00/hour for 37 weeks

Salary $3,145.00
Benefits $286.97

Homework Lab Leader I (2 positions, To be hired by Sept. 1)
5 hours/week at $18.00/hour for 37 weeks

Salary $3,330.00 x2=6,660.00
Benefits 3$303.85 x2= 607.70

Homework Lab Leader II (To be hired by Sept. 1)
4 hours/week at $18.00/hour for 37 weeks

Salary $2,664.00
Benefits $243.08

Homework Lab Leader HI (2 positions, To be hired by Sept. 1)
5 hours/week at $20.00/hour for 37 weeks

Salary $3,700.00 x2 = 7,400.00
Benefits $337.61 x2= 67522

Homework Lab Leader IV (To be hired by Sept. 1)
S hours/week at $22.00/hour for 37 weeks

Salary $4,070.00
Benefits $371.38

Homework Lab Leader IV (To be hired by Sept. 1)
6 hours/week at $22.00/hour for 37 weeks

Salary 54,884.00
Benefits $445.65

40 Hamoshire Circle Dover. NH 03820 Ph: 603.749.6692  Fx: 603.742.2493

Web: www.dhasocc.ora



Stacey Kearns

Education  Masters in Social Work. University of New Hampushire, Durham, NH 2011
: Phi Alpha Honor Society member. Electives in Child and Adolescent Risk and Resiliency,
Program and Resource Development, Social Action in the Dominican Republic,
Therapeutic interventions with Children.

Bachelor of Arts, Drew University, Madison, NJ 2007
Behavioral Science major, Classics minor, Pan-African Studies minor.
Cum Laude. Courses in psychology. sociology, and anthropology. Drew International
Seminar in West Africa.

Experience Director of Family Services, Dover Housing Authority, Dover, NH 2014-present

o Oversee staff and afterschool programming at the Seymour Osman Community Center
and Youth Safe Haven and Woodman Park School.

» Implement and maintain innovative programming to meet the needs of children and
families of Mineral and Whittier Park.

+«  Procure essential program support through grant writing and fundraising.

» Represent the Community Cenier to the general public and reinforce a positive public
perception of Dover's public housing neighborhood.

« Manage all records related to grant reporting requirements.

o Attend community meetings, conferences and workshops directly related to the mission
of the Community Center and the Dover Housing Authority.

« Manage budgets related to program operations.

Service & Training Manager, Old Navy, Manchester, NH and Kittery, ME - 2013-2014
o Responsibie for hiring, training, coaching, motivating, and recognizing.
« Responsible for driving results of store performance including sales, brand loyalty,
customer satisfaction, and employee satisfaction.
e Accountable for monitoring and maintaining company policy and procedure, a safe
environment, and store compliance requirements.

Pricing Specialist, Old Navy, Newington, NH 20130
e [eadteam in executing pricing and marketing tasks.
s Assisted with managerial tasks including store opening and closing.

Sales Associate, Old Navy, Newington, NH 2011-present
e«  Provide customer service to all customers in the store.
e« Primary trainer of new associates assigned to learn the cashier position.

Post Adoption Social Worker, Child & Family Services, Lawrence, MA 2012-2013
¢ Provided home-based family stabilization services to adoptive families.
» Provided advocacy and coordination for families to gain access to long-term supportive

services.
+ Coordinated and facilitated supporst groups and respite opportunities.
Interim School Social Worker, Winnacunnet High School, Hampton, NH 2011

e Available to students for short-term, crisis and on-going therapeutic support.

s« Assessed students who are allegedly being abused or neglected as reported by staff,
students or parents and coordinated reporting to DCYF and administration.

s Homeless Education Agency Liaison coordinating access to education for homeless high
school students in accordance with the McKinney Vento Act.



Counselor, The Summer Camp, Bridgton, ME 2011
o Lived in cabin with girls from low-income families and foster homes acting as positive

role model.
e Facilitated literacy program for all campers, ages 6 through 16.
Intern, Seacoast Youth Services, Seabrook, NH 2010-2011

e Clinical work with individual students at Seabrook Middle School.

¢ Assisted in program evaluation.
e  Contributed to writing grants for Seacoast Youth Services and School Administrative

Unit 21.
« Co-facilitated Adolescent Substance Abuse group and Girls Groups for 57 and 6" grade
students.
Group Counselor Intern, Direction Behavioral Health, Seabrook, NH 2010-2011

s  Clinical work with groups.

« Maintained positive group culture through modeling healthy relationships and
interactions.

e« Ensured client safety.

Intern, Lutheran Social Services, Concord, NH 2008-2010
e  Therapeutic Family Connections department
= Assisted Family Specialists with case management including weekly home visits and
independent living skill instruction.
+  Supervised visits between foster children and biological families.

Administrative Assistant, Rockingham Nutrition & Meals on Wheels, Brentwood, NH 2007-2010
¢ Client intake Specialist for agency providing meals and services to the elderly.
o Responsible for maintaining client registrations with the State of NH to ensure agency
credit and funding for meals served.
e Supported staff members at 12 meal site locations.

Client Advocate, Roots & Wings Foundation of New Jersey, Denville, NJ 2006-2007
s Provided in-home therapy to assist aged out foster youth to gain independence.
« Completed assessments and treatment plans for clients.
¢ 24-hour on-call responsibility.
o Case management services and appropriate linkage and advocacy in the community.

Intern, Big Brothers Big Sisters of Morris. Bergen, and Passaic Counties, Parsippany, NJ 2006
s  Assisted Match Support Specialists
e  Supervision of traditional matches and school/site-based programs.
»  Assisted with volunteer and client interviews and training.

Volunteer Work  American Cancer Society

Certifications

o Relay for Life of Rochester
» Member of planning committee for American Cancer Society walk in 2009, 2010.
e Registration Chair 2009.
e Making Strides Against Breast Cancer
 Event day volunteer 2008, 2010, 2011, 2013

The Surmmer Camp
e Volunteer Counselor 2013

American Heart Association CPR certification



Brandy Barshaw

Experience
2013-present Dover School Department Dover,NH
Principal Assistant
» Assist in the main office by answering phones, data eniry, filing and maintaining data for
reporting.
e Enroll elementary aged children in Woodman Park School.
» Supervise recess for 600 children.
e Supervise Noon Aides.
e Implement and maintain behavior standards for children.
¢ Substitute teach
¢ Work with new familics to provide information, ease fears and help them transition into
Woodman Park School.
e Provide local, state and national resources to families in need.
s Assist teachers, parents and children with daily needs.

2004 -present Seymour Osman Community Center Dover, NH

Project Coordinator

o Implementing, monitoring and maintaining programs for children gradesl-4 at Woodman
Park School. :

o Foll elementary schoot students in SOCC Afterschool Program.

¢ Implements and maintains youth programs at Woodman Park School (primarily) and at
the Seymour Osman Community Center (periodically).

e Facilitate academically linked programming for children in grades 1-4.

o Manage all essential data collection (at Woodman Park School) relative to 21*' CCLC
ouidelines.

e Monitor program attendance and billing for program participation.

¢ Broker and attend meetings between school personnel and parents to ensure optimal
service delivery specitic to children’s needs.

s Coordinate support services for famibhies and children in need.

o Assistin planning and attends field trips.

¢ Meet regularly with staff at Woodman Park School.

o Meet regularly with Director of Family Services.

e (Create, order and maintain monthly snack schedule for 100 children.

¢ Provide support to contracted employees, AmeriCorps volunteers, interns, and
volunteers.

Youth Development Coordinator

s Design and implement educational activities and curriculum f{or a Kindergarten through
{ourth grade after school program.

e Establish and maintain relationships with parents. school administration and community
organizations.



o Delegate tasks to volunteers and work study stafl.
¢ Generate and distribute monthly newsletter for Dover Housing Authority community.

2001-2003 Strafford County Head Stant Dover, NH
Chairperson, Strafford County Parent Advisory Board
s Responsibilities included hiring an firing of statf, managing fiscal budget, and
coordination of county activities such as fundraising and open enroliment period.
¢ Represented county at New England regional conferences.
‘e Delegated tasks to parents and regional Head Start sites.

2001-2002 New Hampshire Head Start Dover, NH
Chairperson, New Hampshire State Advisory Board
¢ Coordinated state wide conferences
o Facilitated discussions regarding agency concerns: particularly proposed changes
nationally and the potential etfects at the state level.

2001-2003 In-Home Day Care Dover, NH
Owner
e QOperated an in-home day care for five children ages newborn to seven.
¢ Coordinated in-home therapeutic services for a child with autism.
» Managed and generated monthly invoices for customer self-pay accounts and New
Hampshire Title XX

Education
2005-2007 Southern New Hampshire University Portsmouth, NH
Bachelor of Arts
e Major Social Science
e 35GPA
e Not complete

Additional Skills
o Computer skills include Microsoft Word, Excel, Publisher, Power Point, and Internet
applications.
¢ 100+ hours of Professional Development in various areas

Certifications
e American Heart Association Heart Saver and First Aid
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Paut Leather

Virginia M. Barry, Ph.D.
Commissioner of Education Deputy Commissioner of E i
Tel. 603-271-.3144 Tel. 603-271-r3801du‘:auon

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION
101 Pleasant Streat
Concord, N.H. 03301
FAX 803-271-1953
Citizens Services Line 1-800-338-9900

May 26, 2015

Her Excellency, Governor Margaret Wood Hassan
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, NH 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Education to exercise a renewal option to grant funds to
the Dover Housing Authority, Dover, NH [Vendor Code 159988}, originally approved by
-Governor and Council on 06/19/13, item #202, renewed 06/18/14, item #145 to
continue to offer extended day programming for youth and their families, effective
vpon Governor and Council approval for the period of July 1, 2015 through June 30,
2016 in an amount not to exceed $96.735.15. 100% Federal Funds.

Funding is available in account titled 21st Century Community Learning Center

FY 16

06-56-56-563010-75380000-072-500577  Grants-Federal $96.735.15

Explangation

The United States Department of Education legisiation allows for five year 21st Century
Community Learning Center grants to serve youth and their families during the out of
school time hours. Grants are annually pending the receipt of an Annual Performance
Report that indicates sufficient progress and the availability of federal funds.

New Hampshire anticipates a FY 2016 grant award in the amount of $5.643,198.00 from
the United States Department of Education under Title 1VB, the 215t Century Community
Learning Center program. This program provides grants to inner city and rural schools,
community based organizations, youth development agencies and other educational
agencies to provide expanded learning opportunities outside of regular school hours for

TDD Access: Relay NH 1-800-735-2964
EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER- EQUAL EDUCATIONAL OPPORTUNITIES



Her Excellency, Governor Margaret Wood Hassan
and The Honorable Council

Page Two

May 26, 2015

children in a safe environment. The programs will offer students a broad aray of
additional services, programs, and activities such as tutorial services, youth
development activities, drug and violence prevention, counseling programs, art, music,
recreation programs, and technology education. These programs and services are
designed to reinforce and complement the regular academic program of the
participating students.

The program services provided by the grant cited above will be coordinated by Dover
Housing Authority in collaboration with the Dover School District. This collaborative
approach will serve elementary Dover School District youth and their famities.

The competition process includes: a Bidders Conference, publication of the RFP,
technical support during the proposal writing process. review and scoring of the
proposal by three reviewers, and award determinations based on this review process.
The reviewers for all proposals include representation from: experienced 21st Century
Community Learning Center and school day professionals, higher education, state
agencies and community based organizations.

This is the third year of a five year grant. The renewal option is included as those
selected for funding are eligible for five years of funding based on previous successful
progress.

In the event Federal Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not be
requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

Vs L omrony

VirginidM. Barry, Ph.D.
Commissioner
VMB:SBS
Enclosures

TDD Access: Relay NH 1-800-735-2964
EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER- EQUAL EDUCATIONAL OPPORTUNITIES



GRANT AGREEMENT

The State of New Hampshire and the Grantee hereby
Mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS
1. Identification and Definitions.

1.1. State Agency Name

1.2. State Agency Address
NH Department of Education

101 Pleasant Street
Concord, NH 03301

1.3. Grantce Name DOVER Houging 1.4. Grantee Address
Town/City of (VC#) AuMonty G2 wHITHer §¥ Dover Moo
5. Effective Date 1.6. Completion Date | 1.7. Audit Date 1.8. Grant Limitation
G&C Approval 6.30.16 N/A $ 96,735.15
1.9. Grant Officer for State Agency 1.10. State Agency Telephone Number

Suzanne Birdsall-Stone 603-520-6263

"By signing this form we certify that we have complied with any public meeting requirement for acceptance of this
rant, includjng if applicable RSA 31:95-b."

s | L1 %n% 1.12. Name & Title of Grantee Signor 1
, teg— EXECUTIVE  DPIRECTIN_
GFantee Signature 2

Name & Title of Grantee Signor 2

Grantee Signature 3 Name & Title of Grantee Signor 3

1.13. Acknowledgment: State of New Hampshire, County of ,on
v Tv/ (© ] 15, before the undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified in block 1.12.,

known to me (or satisfactorily proven) to be the person whos Wituas, is signed in block 1.11., and
acknowledged that he/she executed this document in t Nl zated in block 1.12.
1.13.1. Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the I§a9’e COMM!SspoN

e bR . 5. 2p

Mmm/ ﬁ 2/74@514/ . M L/

1.14, State Agency Slgnagure(s) 1.15. NameZ#¥le of State Agency Signor(s)
ZM,WU.A /)) - V/ﬁ(fﬂ/lé . 64;6((1 '

DULEEne ¢
1.16. A roval by Attorney Gex{eral (Form, Substance and Execution) 4

‘i) MASSlstant Attorney General, On: é Uy [f)

1.17. Apprm al by Governor and Council

sz
2
2
=
2
2
=
£
=
=
av
o~
3
N

By: On: o/

2. SCOPE OF WORK: In exchange for grant funds provided by the State of New Hampshire,
acting through the Agency identified in block 1.1 (hereinafter referred to as “the Statc™), pursuant to
RSA 21-P:36, the Grantee identified in block 1.3 (hereinafter referred to as “the Grantee”), shall

perform that work identified and more particularly described in the scope of work attached hereto as
EXHIBIT A (the scope of work being hereinafter refe oys “the Project”).

\ / ’ Z[ —
Grantee Initials / éjl /')r S

Page 1 of 3 Date
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AREA COVERED. Except as othenwise specitically provided for herein, the
Grantee shall perform the Project in. and with respect to. the State of New
Hampshire.

EFFECTIVE DATE: COMPLETION OF PROJECT

This Agreement, and all obligations of the parties hereunder, shall become
cilective on the date in block 1.5 or on the date of approval of this Agreement by
the Governor and Council of the State of New Hampshire whichever is later
(hereinafter referred to as “the effective daie™).

Except as otherwise specifically provided herein, the Project, including all
reports required by this Agreement, shall be completed 1n TS entirety prior to
the date in block 1.6 (hereinafter referred to as “the Completion Date™).

GRANT AMOUNT: LIMITATION ON AMOUNT: VOUCHERS: PAYMENT
The Gran: Amount is identified and more particularly described in EXHIBIT B,
attached hereto.

The manner of, and schedule of payment shall be as sct forth in EXHIBIT B.

In accordance with the provisions set forth in EXHIBIT B, and in consideration
of the satisfactory perforinance of the Project, as determined by the State, and as
limited by subparagraph 3.5 of these gencral provisions, the State shall pay the
Grantee the Grant Amount. The State shall withhold from the amount otherwise
payable to the Grantee under this subparagraph 53 those sums required, or
pernntted. to be withheld pursuant to N H. RSA 89:7 through 7

The payment by the State of the Grant amount shall be the only, and the
complete payment to the Grantee for all expenses, ot whatever nature, incurred
by the Grantee in the performance hereof, and shall be the only. and the
complete, compensation to the Grantee for the Project.  The State shall have no
liabilities to the Grantee other than the Grant Amount.

Notwithstanding  anything in this Agreement to the contrary. and
notw:thstanding unexpected circumstances, in no event shall the total of all
payments authorized, or actually inade. hereunder exceed the Grant limitation
set forth in block 1.8 of these general provisions

COMPLIANCE BY GRANTEE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS. In
connection with tie performance of the Project, the Grantee shall comply with
all statutes. laws regulations, and orders of federal, state, county, or municipal
authorities which shall impose any obligations or duty upon the Grantee.
including the acquisition of any ard all necessary periuts

RECORDS and ACCOUNTS.

Between the Cttective Date and the dawc three (3) years atter the Completion
Date the Grantee shall keep detaited accounts of all expenses incurred in
connection  with  the Project, including, but not limited to, costs of
administration, transporiation, insurance. telephone calls, and clerical materials
and services. Such accounts shall be supported by receipts, inveices, bills and
other similar documents.

Between the Effective Date and the date three (3) years after the Completion
Date, at any time during the Grantee’s normal business hours, and as often as the
State shall demand. the Grantee shall make available to the State all records
penaining to matlers covered by this Agrecment. The Grantee shall permit the
Staie to audit. examine, and reproduce such records, and to make audits of all
contracts, invoices. materials. payrolls, records of personnel, data (as that term is
hercinafter defined). and other information relating to all matters covered by this
Agreemnent  As used in this paragraph, “Grantee™ includes all persons, natural or
lictional, affitiated with, controlied by, or under common ownership with, the
entity identiticd as the Grantee in block 1.3 of these general provisions
PERSONNEL.

The Grantee shall. at s own expense, provide all personnel necessary to
perform the Project. The Grantee warrants that all personnel engaged in the
Project shall be qualitied to pertorm such Project, and shall be property licensed
and authorized to perforny such Project under all applicable faws

The Grantee shall not hire, and it shall not perinit any subcontractor, subgrantee,
or other person, firm or corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined
effot to perform the Project. to hire any person who has a contractual
relationship with the State. or who is a State ofhicer or employee, elected or
appoinied.

The Grani Officer shall be the representative of the State hereurder. I the event
of any dispute hereunder. the interpretation of this Agreement by the Grant
Ofticer, and his/her decision on any dispute, shall be fina!

DATA: RETENTION OF DATA: ACCESS

As used in this Agreement. the word “data” shall mean all informaticn and
things developed or obtained during the performance of, or acquired or
ceveloped by reason of, this Agreemient, including. but not limited 10, all studies,
reponts, files. formulac, surveys. muaps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions. drawings, analyses, graphic representations,
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computer programs, computer printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, paper. and
documents, all whether finished or unfinished

Between the Effective Date and the Completion Date the Grantee shall grant 1o
the State. or any person designated by it, unrestricted access to all data for
examination, duplication, publication, translation, sale. disposal. or for any uther
purposc whatsoever.

No data shall be subject Lo copyright in the United States or any other country by
anyone other than the State. '
On and after the Effective Date all data, and any property which has been
received from the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose under
this Agreement, shall be the property of the State. and shall be retumed to the
State upon demand or upon termination of this Agreement for anyv reason.
whichever shall first occur.

The State, and anyone it shall designate, shall have unrestricted authority o
publish, disclose, distribute and othenwise use, in whole or in par, all data.
CONDITIONAL NATURE OR AGREEMENT. Notwithstanding anything n
this Agreement to the contrary, al} obligations of the State hereunder, including.
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are contingent upon
the availability or continued appropriation of funds, and in no event shall the
State be hable for any paymients hereunder in excess of such available or
appropriated funds. In the event of a reduction or termination of those funds. the
State shall have the right to withhold payment untit such funds become
available, I ever, and shall have the right to terminate this Agrecrien:
immediately upon giving the Grantee notice of such termination

EVENT OF DEFAULT REMEDIES.

Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the Grantee shall
constitute an event of default hereunder (hereinafler referred 10 as “Events of
Default’™):

Failure to perform the Project satisfactorily or on schedule; or

Failure to submit any report rcquired hereunder; or

Failure to maintain, or permit access to, the records required hereunder: or
Failure to perform any of the other covenants and conditions of this Agreement
Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State wmay take any one. or
more, or all, of the following actions:

Give the Grantee a written notice specifying the Event ot Default and requiring
it to be remedied within, in the absence ot a greater or lesser specification ol
time, thiny (30) days from the date of the notice, and if the Event of Default is
not timely remedied, terminate this Agrecment, eflective two (2) days after
giving the Grantee notice of termination; and )

Give the Grantee a written notice specifving the Event of Default and
suspending all payments t0 be made under this Agreement and ordecing that the
portion of the Grant Amount which would ctherwise accrue to the grantee
during the period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Grantee has cured the Event of Default shall never be paid to
the Grantee; and .

Set ofY against any other obligation the State may owe to the Grantee any
damages the State suffers by reason of any Event of Default, and

Treat the agreement as hreached and pursue any of its remedies at law or i
equity, or both.

TERMINATION.

In the event of any early terimination of this Agreement for any reuson other thun
the completion of the Project, the Grantee shall deliver to the Grant Officer. not
later than fifteen (15) days after the date of termination, a report (hereinatter
referred to as the “Termination Repont”) describing in detail all Project Work
performed, and the Grant Amount carned, to and including the date of
termination.

In the event of Termination under paragraphs 10 or 12.4 of these general
provisions, the approval of such a Termination Report by the State shall entitle
the Grantee to receive that portion of the Grant amount earned to and including
the date of termination.

In the event of Termination under paragraphs 10 or 124 of these general
provisions, the approval of such a Termination Report by the State shall i no
event relieve the Grantee from any and all liability for damages sustained or
incurred by the State as a result of the Grantee's breach ot its obligations
hercunder

Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary. either the State wr
except where notice default has been given to the Grantec hereunder, the
Grantee, may terminate this Agreement without cause upon thirty (30) days
written notice.

CONFLICT OF INTEREST. No officer, member of employee of the Grantee.
and no representative, officer or employee of the State of New Hampshirc or of
the govering body of the locality or localities in which the Project 15 to be
performed. who exercises any functions or responsibilsties in the review of




approval of the undenaking or carrying out of such Project, shall participate in
any decision relating to this Agreement which affects his or her personal
interest of the interest of any corporatian, partnership, or association in which
he or she s directly or indirectly interested, nor shall he or she have any
personal or pecuniary interest, direct or indirect, in this Agreement or the
proceeds thereof.

GRANTEE'S RELATION TQ THE STATE In the performance of this
Agreement the Grantee, its employees, and any subcontractor or subgrantee of
the Grantee are n all respects independent contractors, and are neither agents
nor employees of the State. Neither the Grantee nor any of its ofticers.
emplovees. agents, members, subcontractors or subgrantees, shall have
authority to bind the State nor are they entitled to any of the benetits.
workmen's compensation or emoluments provided by the State to its
employezs.

ASSIGNMENT AND SUBCONTRACTS. The Grantee shall not assign, or
otherwise traaster any interest in this Agreement without the prior writen
consent of the State  None of the Project Work shall be subcontracted or
subgranted by the Grantec other than as set forth in Exhibit A without the prior
written consent of the State

INDEMNIFICATION  The Grantee shall dcfend, indemnify and hold
harmless the State, its officers and employers, from and against any and all
losses suffered by the State, its oflicers and employees, and any and all claims.
liabilitics or penalties asserted against the State, its ofticers and employecs, by
or on behalf of any person, on account of, based on, resulting trom, arising out
of (or which wnay be claimed to arise out of) the acts or omissions of the
Grantee or Subconiractor. or subgrantee of other agent of the Grantee
Notwithstanding the foregoing. nothing hercin contained shalt be deemed to
constitute a waiver of the sovereign immunity of the State, which immunity is
hereby reserved to the State  This covenant shall survive the termination of
this agreement.

INSURANCE AND BOND -

The Grantee shall, at its own expense, obtain and maintain in force, or shall
require any subcontractor, subgrante¢ or assignee performing Project work to
obtain and maintain in force, both for the benetit of the State, the following
insurance:

Statutory warkmen’s compensation and emnployees liability insurance for all
employees engaged in the performance of the Project, and

Comprehensive public liability insurance against all claims of bodily injunies,
death or property damnage. in amounts not less than $2,000.000 for bodily
injury or death any one incident, and $500,000 for property danage in any one
incident: and

Grantee [nitials
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The policies described in subparagraph 17 1 of this paragraph shail be the
standard form employed in the State of New Hampshire, issued by uaderwriters
acceptable to the State, and authorized to do business in the State of New
Hampshire. Each policy shall contain a clause prohibiting cancellation or
modification of the policy earlier than ten (10) days after written notice thereaf
has been received by the State

WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the State to enforce any provisions
hereof after any Event of Default shall be deemed a waiver of its rights with
regard to that Event, or any subsequent Event. No express waiver of any Lvent
of Default shall be deemed a waiver of any provisions hereof No such faiiure of
waiver shall be deemed a waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and all
of the provisions hereof upon any further or other defauit on the part of the
Grantee

NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other pasty shall ke deened to
have been duly delivered or given at the time of mailing, by certified mu!.
postage prepaid, in a United States Post Office addressed to the parties at the
addresses first above given.

AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended, waived or discharged only
by an instrument in writing signed by the parties hereto and only after approval
of such amendment, waiver or discharge by the Govemor and Ceuncil of the
State of New Hampshire.

CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS. This Agreement shall be
construed in accordance with the law of the State of New Hampshire, and s
binding upon and inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective
successors and assignees. The captions and contents of the “subject” blank are
used only as a matter of convenience, and are not to be considered a pa:t ol this
Agreement or to be uscd in determining the intend of the parties hereto.

THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to benefit any third parties
and this Agreement shall not be construed to confer any such benetit.

ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may be exscuted in a number
of counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, constitutes the enure
agreement and understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
agreements and understandings relating hereto

SPECIAL PROVISIONS  The additional provisions set forth in Extubit ¢
hereto are incorporated as part of this agreement

6 ﬂo‘/b/

Date



OBM FORM 1
9/2005

Federal/State Program Title:

PROJECT APPLICATION BUDGET AND DESIGNATION OF APPLICATION MANAGER/ PROJECT MANAGER

FROM: Seymour Osman Community Center
c/o Dover Housing Authority
62 Whittier Street
Dover, NH 03820

SAU/RA: #11

Proposed Project Titie:

SOCC Afterschool Program

PROJECT # 136277
CHANGE # QOriginal
SOCC Atterschool Program PAGE 1 of 2
TO: Suzanne Birdsall-Stone TYPE OF CHANGE
NH Department of Education BUDGET
State Office Park South X FUND AUTH
101 Pleasant Street FISCAL AGENT
Concord, New Hampshire 03301-3860 OTHER

Project Period: July 1, 2015 to:  June 30, 2016

“**The following information is required for all projects=**

PROJECT MANAGER: NAME:

Stacey Kearns

TITLE: Director of Family Services

ADDRESS:

62 Whittier Street, Dover, NH 03820

TELEPHONE: 603-749-6692

E-MAIL ADDRESS:

skearns@doverhousingauthority org

FAX: 603-742-6911

FINANCIAL CONTACT: NAME:

Wendy M. Tenney

TELEPHONE: 603-742-5804

E-MAIL ADDRESS:

wendy@doverhousingauthority.org FAX:

603-742-6911

The above named person is designated as Project Manager. | hold the Project Manager responsible for implementing the project in accordance with the approved project, for remaining
within the budget limitations, for ensuring that only authorized items required to implement the project are charged to the project, and for initiating request to amend the approved project.
No services or supplies will be ordered or charged to the project without written approval of the Project Manager.

THE APPLICANT AGENCY AGREES AND CERTIFIES THAT:

1. This grant will be administered in accordance with the applicable provisions of the following federal laws and regulations:
a. Education Department General Administrative Regulations {EDGAR) in Title 34 Code of Federal Regulations (CFR), Parts 74, 75, 76, 77, 79, 80, 82, 85, 86; Civil Rights Regulations in 34 CFR,

Parts 100 through 106, and specific program laws and regulations.

b. Any amendments in effect on the date of this grant award or to become effective during the project period are incorporated.

@ b LN

. Grant accounting and financial reporting will be in accordance with New Hampshire Department of Education "Federal Funds Financial Management Manual”.

. Authgrized funds will be obligated and expended only for the purpose described in the approved project proposal and budget.

- Audits will be in compliance with the Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996 (P.L. 104-156) and U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circulars.

. Project approval, it given, will be on the condition that full funding of the Approved Budget and payment by the grantor are contingent upon the availability of a Federal Grant and

Appropriation Authority approved by the General Court of New Hampshire or the Governor and Council of this State for this purpose. Neither the State nor the Department of Education

shall be liable for payments under this grant except from such funds.

FISCAL AGENT - MAKE CHECKS PAYABLE TO:

Seymour Osman Cammunity Center
c/o Dover Housing Authority
62 Whittier Street

Dover, NH 03820

APPROVED INDIRECT COST RATE: 0 %

Wendy M. Tenney

P T NAME AND TITLE qf SAU SUPERINTENDENT OF SCHQOQLS
T RA L OKKICE
K g N

w\&&o/o s~

SIGNATURE SAY SUPERINTENDENT OF€CHEOLS 7 DATE

or RA/CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER



OBM FORM 1
9/2005

BUDGET SUMMARY BY OBJECT AND FUNCTION CODES

{See NH Financial Accounting Handbook 1999 Edition pages A-38 through A-75)

OBJECT 1000 2000 2. 5000
CODE INSTRUCTION SUPPORT ADMIN INDIRECT TOTAL
100 33,109.00 31,815.65 COST BELOW 64,924.65
200 2,997.92 6,737.66 CANNOT 9,735.58
300 13,600.12 4,170.00 INCLUDE AUDIT 17,770.12
400 FEES WHEN A -
500 1,304.80 PROJECT LINE 1,304.80
600 3,000.00 ITEM INCLUDES 3,000.00
700 AUDIT FEES -
800 -
900 it
TOTALS 49,707.04 47,028.11 - - - - 96,735.15
DETAIL OF PROPOSED BUDGET
FUNCTION OBJECT BUDGET DETAILED FUNCTION OBJECT BUDGET DETAILED
CODE CODE AMOUNT INFORMATION CODE CODE AMOUNT INFORMATION
2000 110 31,815.65 Salaries
2000 211 2,574.06 | Health/Medical
2000 212 83.73 Dental
2000 213 7.20 Life
2000 214 61.20 Disability
| 2000 220 2,433.90 FICA
2000 230 1,256.63 Retirement
2000 250 154.00 | Unemployment
2000 260" 166.94 | Workers' Comp
2210 531 204.80 Phone
2210 534 100.00 Postage
2210 580 1,000.00 Travel
1400 321 13,600.12 Contractual
2100 322 2,170.00 Contractual
2210 340 2,000.00 | Data/Evaluation
2210 610 3,000.00 Supplies
1000 100 33,109.00 Salaries
1000 220 2,532.84 FICA
1000 250 291.36 | Unemployment
| 1000 260. 173.72 | Workers' Comp
SUB TOTAL/TOTAL 873515y 7177 TTTTTrI7TT SUB TOTAL/TOTAL - TTrrrriririm’




State of Netn Hampshire
Bepartment of State

CERTIFICATE

[, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby
certify that THE SEYMOUR OSMAN COMMUNITY CENTER AND YOUTH SAFE
HAVEN is a New Hampshire nonprofit corporation formed April 29, 2002. I further
certify that it is in good standing as far as this office is concerned, having filed the

return(s) and paid the fees required by law.

In TESTIMONY WHEREOF, 1 hereto
set my hand and cause to be affixed
the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,
this 25" day of February A.D. 2015

ey Gl

William M. Gardner
Secretary of State




CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

DOVER HOUSING AUTHORITY

|, Kathy Noel, recording official of the Dover Housing Authority, a municipal corporation
pursuant to RSA 203 located at 62 Whittier Street, Dover New Hampshire 03820 certify the

attached By-Laws of the Dover Housing Authority are a true and accurate copy of the official
By-Laws of the Dover Housing Authority.

The By-Laws of the Dover Housing Authority authorize the Executive Director, Allan B. Krans Sr.
to perform all duties incident to the office of Executive Director including the execution of
contracts and the day-to-day management of the programs of the Dover Housing Authority.

I further certify Allan B. Krans Sr. currently occupies the position of Executive Director and has
-authority to bind the corporation.

Date: June 10, 2015

Kathy Noel, ding official

Kathy Noel, appeared before me this 10" day of June, 2015, and after being duly sworn stated
her signature her act was her voluntary true act and deed.

WWUHEL,
\\\\\\\ A II/

\\\‘

7, \\)
™

Notary Public
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CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

OATE (MWDDYYY)
2/19/2015

REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

THIS CERTIFICATE 1S ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED

certificale holder in Hleu of such endorsement(s).

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(tes) must be endorsed. If SUBROGATION |S WAIVED, subject to
the terms and conditlons of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the

PRODUCER
D.B. Warlick & Co.
P O Box 1260

69 Lafayette Rd.

North Hampton NH 03862

| SRME <’ Kathlean Flibotte, CISR
’E;m“"e' g (603) 964-6065 ll'!‘“s fgl; (8031 96¢-3029
m“;kflibotceedbwarlick.com

INSURER{S) AFFORDING COVERAGE

NAIC

wgurera:Philadelphia Indemnity

INSURED

msyreas Mount Vernon Fire Insurxance

Seymour Osman Community Center & ° INBURER C ;
Yaouth Safe Haven INSURER O :
c/o Dover Housing Authority, 62 Whittier St INSURER € :
Dover NH 03820 INSURER F :
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER:14-15 Master REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS YO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN (SSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TQ WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED 8Y THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN 1S SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

hiauhdl
IETSnR YYPE OF INSURANCE Ty | WvD POLICY NUMBER O B | GOECr EXE . LIMITS .
QENERAL LABIUTY EACH OCCURRENCE [} 1,000,000
v | [DAMAGE YO RENTED
X | COMMERCIAL GERERAL LABLITY L ’_mmw S 1,000,000
A CLANS MADE OCCUR PHPK1235661 /24/2014 r’/“/"“s MED EXP (Any onoperson) | $ 5,000
X PERSONAL 8 ADVINIURY | $ 1,000,000
': GENERAL AGGREGATE [ 2,000,000
GENL AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER PROOUCTS - COMP/IOP AGG | § 2,000,000
PRO- s
X { PoLICY IECT LOC
'_AE‘TOUOEILE LIABILITY CWSWGLE LIMIT - s
AMNY AUTO BODILY INJURY {Per person) | §
1 :tJLfg?NEO iﬁTHggULEO BODILY INJURY {Per accdern)! §
™ NON-QWNED LFRWOP
| | HRED AUTOS Mmﬁ ¢ | (Por ncosiont) '
H
L_ UMBRELLA UAS OCCUR EACH OCCURRENCE 1]
EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE 3
0£D | ] _RETENTION S 3
WORKERS COMPENSATION WC STATU- l°£e'i'
AND EMPLOYERS LABILITY YiN
ANY)@E?;?EE%SIE:RTNER#ECU‘ IWVE NIA € L. EACH ACCIOENT $
OFF! '] CLUDED”?
{Mzndatory in NN) €.L DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEH 3
X y09, 00sCr e under Ny
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS beiow E L DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT | §
B |Directors & Officers NDO20077871H (DsO) /29/2014 8/29/20135 | gach Claim & Aggrogats 31,000, 000
Employment Practicas Fnozoonsnn {D&O) /2972014 B/29/201S | gacn Clam & Aggragate $1,000,000
DESCRIPTION OF DPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEMICLES {Aflach ACORD 101, A S 10, ¥ more space |e raquired)
Bvidence of coverage
CANCELLATION

CERTIFICATE HOLDER
e

NH Department of Education
State Office Park South
101 Pleasant Street
Concord, NH 03301-3860

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION OATE THEREOF, NOTICE wWitL BE DEUVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AVTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

Edward Young/KF

ACORD 25 {2010/08)
INS025 (201005) 01

© 1988-2010 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD nama and logo are registesed marks of ACORD



BY LAWS
OF THE DOVER HOUSING AUTHORITY

ARTICLE |- THE AUTHORITY
Section 1. Name of the Authority. The name of the Authority shall be the “Dover
Housing Authority.”
Section 2. Seal of Authority. The seal of Authority shall be in the form of a circle and
shall bear the name of the Authority and the year of its organization, and the initials “N.H.”
Section 3. Office of Authority. The office of the Authority shall be located at 62 Whittier
Street, Daver, New Hampshire.

Section 4, Board of Commissioners. The Authority shall have five (5) commissioners.

The City Manager is responsible for the appointment of the Commissioners. Commissioners are
appointed for a five (5} year term and the terms shall be staggered so that one vacancy occurs
each year.

Section 5. Duties of the Commissioners. The Board of Commissioners shall hire the
Executive Director to provide the management of the Authority. The Board shall also adopt

policies and resolutions and provide clear and concise policy and guidelines to the Executive
Director. The Executive Director is charged with the day to day responsibility of making the
housing authority operate, as well as, for the execution of policies.

ARTICLE 1l — OFFICERS
Section 1. Officers. The officers of the Authority shall be a Chairperson, a Vice—
Chairperson, and a Secretary-Treasurer (who shall be Executive Director). The Chairperson and

Vice-Chairperson must be on the Board for at least one (1) year before being eligible for
election.

Section 2. Chairperson. The Chairperson shall preside at all meetings of the Authority.
The Chairperson shall sign all documents required by the Housing and Urban Development
(HUD) to be signed by the Chairperson. At each meeting, the Chairperson shall submit such
recommendations and information as may be considered proper concerning the business and
affairs and policies of the Authority.

Section 3. Vice-Chairperson. The Vice-Chairperson shall perform the duties of the
Chairperson in the absence or incapacity of the Chairperson; and in case of the resignation or
death of the Chairperson, the Vice-Chairperson shall perform such duties as are imposed on the
Chairperson until such time as the Authority shall select a new Chairperson.

Section 4. Secretary-Treasurer. The Secretary-Treasurer shalf be the Executive Director
of the Authority and, as such, shall be responsible for the administration of its business and
affairs, subject to the Board approved policies. The Executive Director shall be responsible for
the records of the Authority. The Executive Director and/or the person so designated shall act




as recording Secretary of the meetings of the Authority and record all votes, and shall keep a
record of the proceedings of the Authority in a journal of proceedings to be kept for such
purpose. The Executive Director shall have the care and custody of all funds of the Authority
and shali be responsible over the staff that deposits the same in the name of the Authority in
such bank or banks as the Board shall approve by resolution. The Executive Director and other
Authority staff, as designated by the Board of Commissioners, shall sign all orders and checks
for the payment of money and shall pay out and disburse such monies under the direction of
the Board of and as approved in annual operating budgets, except as otherwise authorized by
the Board of Commissioners. The Executive Director shall be responsible for the regular books
of accounts indicating receipts and expenditures and shall render to the Board of
Commissioners at each regular meeting (or more often, if requested) an account of transactions
and also of the financial condition of the Authority.

Section 5. Election or Appointment. The Chairperson and Vice-Chairperson shall be
elected at the annual meeting of the Board of Commissioners from among the commissioners,
and shall hold office for one year or until their successors are elected and qualified.

Section 6. Vacancies. Should the office of Chairperson or Vice-Chairperson become
vacant, the Board of Commissioners shall elect a successor from its membership at the next
meeting, and such election shall be for the unexpired term of said office. When the office of
the Executive Directovr becomes vacant, the Board of Commissioners shall appoint a successor

from a list of qualified applicants.

Section 7. Executive Director. The Board of Commissioners shall hire the Executive
Director by written contract, or, if there is no written contract, subject to the Personnel Policy
of the Authority. The Board of Commissioners shall determine the compensation of the
Executive Director. The Executive Director shall be charged with the day-to-day management
of the housing programs of the Authority, and shall execute the policies adopted by the
Commissioners. The Executive Director has the authority to hire, transfer, discharge, discipline,
demote, and promote. The Executive Director shall inform and advise the Board on
recommended policy changes and required regulatory changes in policy. The Executive
Director shall perform all duties incident to the Executive Director office. In a case of a vacancy
in the position of Executive Director, no Commissioner of the Authority shall be eligible for this

office during his or her tenure and for one year thereafter, except on a temporary
basis, provided that a temporary appointee selected from among the commissioners of the
Authority shall serve without compensation (other than the payment of necessary expenses).”

Section 8. Additional Personnel. The Authority may from time to time employ such
personnel as it deems necessary to exercise its powers, duties and functions as prescribed by
the Housing Authorities Law of the State of New Hampshire, as amended and all other laws of
the State of New Hampshire applicable thereto. The selection and compensation of such




personnel, including the Secretary shall be determined by the Authority subject to the laws of
the State of New Hampshire.

Section 9. Committees. The Chairperson may appoint committees to serve in an
advisory capacity to the full Board and Executive Director.

ARTICLE il — MEETINGS
Section 1. Annual Meeting. The annual meeting of the Authority shall be held on the
date and time established by Board resolution, at the regular meeting place of the'Authority.
In the event that the date falls on a legal holiday, the annual meeting shall be held on the next
succeeding calendar day. Notice of this meeting, including the preliminary agenda shall be

posted at the principal office of the Housing Authority in a public place at least seven (7) days
prior to the meeting day.

Section 2. Regular Meetings. Monthly meetings shall be held at the regular meeting
place of the Authority on the date and time established by the Board by resolution. In the

event the date falls on a legal holiday, the meeting shall be held on the next succeeding
calendar day. Notice of these meetings, including the preliminary agenda shall be posted at the
principal office of the Housing Authority in a public place at least three (3) days prior to the
meeting day. ' :
Section 3. Special Meetings. The Chairperson or Executive Director of the Authority

may, when he/she deems it appropriate, or shall, upon the written request of two (2) members
of the Board of Commissioners call a special meeting of the Authority for the purpose of
transacting any business designated in the call. The meeting shall be held within a reasonable
time not to exceed two weeks. The call for a special meeting may be delivered to each Board
member of the Authority or may be mailed to the business or home address of each member of
the Board of Commissioners at least three (3) business days prior to the date of such special
meeting. Notice of this meeting, including a preliminary agenda shall be posted at the principal
office of the Housing Authority in a public place at least seven (7) days prior to the meeting day.
If a preliminary agenda is not available the posted notice shall include a general description of
the nature and purpose of the meeting. At such meeting no business shall be considered other
than as designated in the notice. However if all of the Board of Commissioners of the Authority
are present at a special meeting, any/all business may be transacted at such special meeting.

Section 4. Non-public Sessions. Executive sessions shall be conducted in accordance with
the New Hampshire Revised Statutes Annotated (RSA) Chapter 91-A, Access to Public Records
and Meetings.

Section 5. Quorum. Three Commissioners shall constitute a quorum for the purpose of
conducting its business and exercising its powers and for all other purposes, but a smaller
number may adjourn until a quorum is obtained. Once a quorum is established, action may be




taken by the Board of Commissioners upon a vote of a majority of the Commissions present.
Whenever, during the meeting a quorum is not present, the only thing to be done is to adjourn;
though, if no question is raised about it, the debate can be continued, reports may be received,
but no vote may be taken.

Section 6. Order of Business. At the regular meeting of the Authority, Robert’s Rule of
Order shall be the followed and the following shall be the order of business:

Roli Call

Public Comment

Approval of the minutes of the previous meeting and any intervening special meeting.
Approval of Manifests

Executive Director report

Other reports as determined by the Board of Commissioners

Old Business

New business

Vo NoOW e WNRE

Adjournment

Notes: The Board of Commissioners reserve the right to change the order of business as '
deemed necessary. All resolutions shall be in writing and shall be maintained in the official.
minute book of the Authority.




Section 7. Manner of Voting. The voting on all questions coming before the Authority shall
be by ayes and nays. However, upon the request of any member, voting shall be by rolt call and
the ayes and nays shall be entered upon the minutes of such meeting.

Section 8. Minutes: Written minutes shall be kept of all public meetings. The minutes must
include the following:

¢ The date, time and place of the meeting
¢ The name of the members present
e The substance of all official actions and a record of the votes in favor, opposed to,
and the number of abstentions as to all official actions
e The names of all citizens who appeared officially at the meeting and the subject of
their comments
Section 9. Public Comments: The following rules will apply to all public
comments at the Board of Commissioners meetings:
¢ '~ Any member of the public may attend and speak at any meeting of the Dover
Housing Authority {except non-public meetings).
e Remarks must be limited to five (5) minutes.
o The Board Chairperson or his/her representative will refer items brought before
the Board to the Executive Director for resolution.

ARTICLE IV - AMENDMENTS
Amendments to By-Laws. The by-laws of the Authority shall be amended only with the
approval of at least three members of the Authority at a regular meeting, but no such
amendment(s) shall be adopted unless notice of the amendment has been submitted in writing
at the previous regular meeting of the Authority.

Adopted: 08/18/1950
Revised: 03/16/2010

Revised: 04/14/2010
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OUELLETTE & ASSOCIATES, PA.

\\ilﬂ IFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
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INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANT’S REVIEW REPORT

To The Board of Directors
Seymour Osman Community Center & Youth Safe Haven
Dover, New Hampshire

We have reviewed the accompanying statement of financial position of Seymour Osman Community
Center & Youth Safe Haven (a nonprofit organization) as of June 30, 2014, and the related statements of
activities, functional expenses and cash flows for the year then ended. A review includes primarily applying
analytical procedures to management’s financial data and making inquiries of Organization management. A
review is substantially less in scope than an audit, the objective of which is the expression of an opinion
regarding the financial statements as a whole. Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America ‘and for
designing, implementing, and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation
of the financial statements.

Our responsibility is to conduct the review in accordance with Statements on Standards for Accounting and
Review Services issued by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require
us to perform procedures to obtain limited assurance that there are no material modifications that should be
made to the financial statements. We believe that the results of our procedures provide a reasonable basis
for our repont.

Based on our review, with the exception of the matter described in the following paragraph, we are not
aware of any material modifications that should be made to the accompanying financial statements in order
for them to be in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

As disclosed in Note 2 to the financial statements, accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America require the consolidation of financially related non-profit organizations. Management
has informed us that the Organization’s accounts have not been consolidated with the Dover Housing
Authority (DHA). The effect of this departure on the Organizations financial position, activities, and cash
flows has not been determined.

Ouellette & Associates, @A
Certified Public Accountants

February 3, 2015
Lewiston, Maine

1111 Lisbon Street » Lewiston, Maine 04240 # Telephone: (207) 786-0328 » FAX: (207) 783-9377 ¢ www.oacpas.net



SEYMOUR OSMAN COMMUNITY CENTER & YOUTH SAFE HAVEN

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

JUNE 30, 2014
ASSETS
ASSETS
Grants Receivable $ 20671
TOTAL ASSETS $ 20,671
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
LIABILITIES
Cash Overdrafi 3 4.969
Accounts Payable 1478
Accrued Payroll 859
Accrued Compensated Absences 14,580
Due to Dover Housing Authority 29,000
Total Liabilities 50,886
NET ASSETS
Unrestricted (30,215)
Total Net Assets (30,215)
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS $ 20671

See accompanying notes and independent accountant’s review report.
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SEYMOUR OSMAN COMMUNITY CENTER & YOUTH SAFE HAVEN

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2014

Temporarily
Unresiricted Restricied lotal
SUPPORT AND REVENUE
Contributions:
Dover Housing Authority - Monetary Funding $ 50,000 ) - $ 50.000
Dover Housing Authority - Donated Facility 87,198 - 87.198
Dover Housing Authority - Donated Overhead Costs 26,857 - 20.857
Other Miscellaneous Contributions 2.393 - 2.393
Grant Revenuc:
21st Century Community Leaming Center Gramt 79,217 - 79.217
Service Fees 21,848 - 21.848
Special Evenis Revenue 11,107 - -
Less: Costs of Direct Benefits to Donors {339 - -
Net Revenue from Special Events 10.748 10.748
Other Revenue 8.977 - 8.977
Interest Income 16 - 16
Net Assets Released from Restrictions 3.325 (3.3254 -
TOTAL SUPPORT AND REVENUE 290,579 (3.325) 287,254
EXPENSES
Program Expenscs 283,584 - 283.584
Management and General 18,036 - 18.036
TOTAL EXPENSES 301.620 - 301.620
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS (11,041 {3.325) {14,366)
NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR (As Previously Reported) (4,549) 3.325 (1.229)
Prior Period Adjustment (14.625) - (14.625)
NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR (As Restated) (19,174) 3.325 (15.849)
NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR § (30.21%) § - $ (30.215)

See accompunying notes and independent accountunt’s review repast.



SEYMOUR OSMAN COMMUNITY CENTER & YOUTH SAFE HAVEN

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2014

Program Management
Expenses and General Total

Salaries and Wages $ 116,971 $ - b 116,971
Payroll Taxes and Benefits 24,312 - 24,312

Total Personnel Expenses 141,283 - 141.283
Rental Expense 78.478 8.720 87.198
Direct Program Expenses - Contracted Services 23.010 - 23,010
Direct Program Expenses - Other 11.518 - 11,518
Utilities 13.190 1,466 14.656
Supplies and Materials 1.223 - 1,223
Professional Fees 4.600 - 4,600
Computer Support 14 - 14
Maintenance 4.352 483 4835
Telephone and Internet 1,492 - 1.492
Insurance - 3.623 - 3.623
Training - 569 - 569
Travel and Conferences 152 - 152
Postage 80 - 80
Bookkeeping - 7.367 7.367

TOTAL EXPENSES $§ 283.584 $ 18,036 s 301,620

See accompanying notes and independent accountant’s review report.
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SEYMOUR OSMAN COMMUNITY CENTER & YOUTH SAFE HAVEN

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Change in Net Assets
Adjustments to Reconcile Change in Net Assets to
Net Cash From Operating Activities:
{Increase) Decrease in Operating Assets.
Grants Receivable.
Increase (Decrease) in Operating Liabilities:
Cash Overdraft
Accounts Payable
Accrued Payroll
Other Accrued Liabilities
Refundable Advances

NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Net Payments to Dover Housing Authority

DECREASE IN CASH -

CASH AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH AT END OF YEAR

See accompanying notes and independent accountant’s review report.
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£ (14.366)

7.112

4.969
1361
296
518
(1,236)
(1.346)

(6.967)

(8.313)

8313



SEYMOUR OSMAN COMMUNITY CENTER & YOUTH SAFE HAVEN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30. 2014

NOTE I

NOTE 2:

ORGANIZATION AND NATURE OF ACTIVITIES

Seymour Osman Community Center & Youth Safe Haven (SOCC) is a private nonprofit
organization affiliated with the Dover Housing Authority (DHA). SOCC was formed by
DHA and both organizations share many of the same board members. In addition, DHA is
currently the primary supporter of SOCC. The SOCC’s mission is to provide positive youth
development programs, family support and education about drugs and alcohol.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Reporting Entity

The accompanying financial statements are those of only SOCC and do not include the
accounts of Dover Housing Authority. Management has indicated that the Organization is
financially related to the Dover Housing Authority (DHA). DHA has a controlling financial
interest through its voting interest in the Board of the Organization and DHA has an
economic interest by providing significant support to the Organization. As a result, the
financial statements of the Organization should be consolidated with DHA under generally
accepted accounting principles.

Accounting Method
The accounts of the Organization are maintained in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America on an accrual basis.

Basis of Presentation
The Organization is required to report information regarding its financial position and
activities according to three classes of net assets as follows:

Unrestricted Net Assets — Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed
stipulations.

Temporarily Restricted Net Asscts — Net assets subject to donor-imposed
stipulations that limit the use of the donated funds. When the time restriction
ends or when the purpose restriction is accomplished, temporarily restricted net
assets are reclassified to unrestricted net assets and reported in the statement of
activities as net assets released from restrictions. As of June 30, 2014, the
Organization had no temporarily restricted net assets,

Permanently Restricted Net Assets — Net assets subject to donor-imposed
stipulations that they be maintained permanently by the Organization. Generally,
the donors of these assets permit the Organization to use all or part of the income
eamed on any related investments for general or specific purposes. As of June
30, 2014, the Organization had no permanently restricted net assets.

-6-



SEYMOUR OSMAN COMMUNITY CENTER & YOUTH SAFE HAVEN

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

JUNE 30, 2014

NOTE 2:

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Grants Receivable
Grants receivable consist primarily of state and local community grants. Management
believes that balances carried are fully collectible. Accordingly, no allowance tor doubtful

“accounts is required. When management determines accounts are uncollectible, they will be

directly charged to operations. Management believes such amounts would be immaterial.

Equipment

It is the Organizations policy to capitalize equipment with a cost of over $5,000 if
purchased. and a fair value of $5.000 or more if the equipment is donated. Donated
equipment is reported as unrestricted contributions unless the donor has restricted the
donated asset to a specific purpose. Assets donated with explicit restrictions regarding their
use and contributions of cash that must be used to acquire equipment are reported as
restricted contributions. Equipment is depreciated using the straight-line method over the
estimated useful lives of the assets. All of the Organization's equipment was fully
depreciated at June 30, 2014.

Income Taxes

The Organization is exempt from federal income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the
Internal Revenue Code and did not conduct unrelated business activities. Therefore, no
provision has been made for federal income taxes in the accompanying financial
statements. Management has determined that the Organization does not have any uncertain
tax positions and associated unrecognized benefits that materially impact the financial
statements or related disclosures. Since tax matters are subject to some degree of
uncertainty, there can be no assurance that the Organization’s tax returns will not be
challenged by the taxing authorities and that the Organization will not be subject to
additional tax, penaltics and interest as a resuft of such challenge. Generally, the
Organization’s tax returns remain subject to examination for three years after they were
filed.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual
results could diftfer from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Organization considers all highly liquid debt instruments purchased with a maturity of
three months or less to be cash equivalents. The Organization had no cash equivalents at
June 30, 2014.



SEYMOUR OSMAN COMMUNITY CENTER & YOUTH SAFE HAVEN

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

JUNE 30, 2014

NOTE 2:

NOTE 3:

NOTE 4;

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Subsequent Events

Events that occur after the statement of financial position date but before the financial
statements were available to be issued must be evaluated for recognition or disclosure.
Subsequent events that provide evidence about conditions that existed at the statement of
financial position datc are required to be recognized in the accompanying financial
statements. Subsequent events that provide evidence about conditions that existed after
the statement of financial position date require disclosure in the accompanying notes.
Management evaluated the activity of the Organization through February 3. 2015, the
date the financial statements were available to be issued. and concluded that no
subsequent events have occurred that would require recognition in the financial
statements or disclosure in the notes to the financial statements.

GRANTS RECEIVABLE

The Organization has been awarded several grants to further its goal of providing youth
programis, family support and drug and alcohol education. These grants are considered
exchange transactions. Accordingly. revenue is earned as the program service is provided
and expenses are recognized as incurred. Grants Receivables are due in less than one year
and consist of the following at June 30, 2014:

21* Century Community Learning Center Grant 20,6

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Common Control
SOCC and DHA share many of the same board members.

Donated Facilities

The DHA has donated the use of the facility occupied by SOCC without any stipulation as
to the occupancy period. For this reason the Organization recognized, at fair value, a
contribution and rental expense in the amount of $87,198 for the value of the rent during the
year.

Donated Overhead Costs

The DHA has funded certain other overhead costs on behalf of the SOCC. These costs are
treated as donations as DHA does not require the Organization to reimburse these costs.
Overhead costs funded by DHA are as follows:

Utilities $14,655
Bookkeeping 7.367
Maintenance 4.835
$26.857

-8-



SEYMOUR OSMAN COMMUNITY CENTER & YOUTH SAFE HAVEN

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

JUNE 30,2014

NOTE 4:

NOTE 5:

NOTE 6:

NOTE 7:

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Personnel Expenses
The Organization is staffed by employees of DHA. The costs associated with these

employees are reimbursed to DHA and are reported as Salaries and Wages and Payroll
Taxes and Benefits for financial statement reporting purposes. For the vear ended June 30,
2014, SOCC paid DHA $145.,177 for personnel costs. At June 30. 2014, SOCC owed DHA
$29,000 for June 2014 personnel costs.

Community Center Funding
During the year ended June 30, 2014, DHA provided funding towards the community
centers operations. SOCC utilized funding totaling $50,000 towards the support of its
community center programs.

Financial Support
Presently, DHA has agreed to provide funding to SOCC on an as needed basis. For the year

ended June 30, 2014, DHA provided approximately 56% of the Organization's total
funding.

CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK

The Organization maintains its cash balances with one financial institution. Accounts are
insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) up to $250.000. The
Organization’s cash balances were fully insured at June 30, 2014,

RESTRICTIONS OF NET ASSETS

Temporarily restricted net assets in the prior year consisted of the following:
Contributions restricted for the funding of:
HOOPLA Festival & Fashion Show $ 3325

PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT

An error. resulting in the understatement of the reported accrued compensated absences
in the Organization’s previously issued financial statements was discovered in 2014 and
has been corrected in the current year. Accordingly, an adjustment of $14.625 was made
during 2014 to accrue payroll and compensated absences and reduce previously reported
net assets as of the beginning of the year. The effect of the restatement on the change in
net assets for 2013 was not determinable.



SEYMOUR OSMAN COMMUNITY CENTER & YOUTH SAFE HAVEN

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

JUNE 30,2014

NOTE 8:

CONTINGENCIES — GOING CONCERN

As indicated in the accompanying financial statements, the Organization showed a decrease
in net assets of $14,929 during the year ended June 30, 2014. As of that date. the
Organization's current liabilities exceeded its total assets by $30.215. Those factors, as well
as the uncertain conditions that the Organization faces regarding its funding sources, create
an uncertainty about the Organization’s ability to continue as a going concern. Management
of the Organization is developing a plan to reduce its operating expenses and Dover
Housing Authority has committed to monetary funding of approximately $54,000 for the
upcoming year. The ability of the Organization to continue as a going concern is dependent
upon the plan’s success and future funding from Dover Housing Authority. The financial
statements do not include any adjustments that might be necessary if the Organization is
unable to continue as a going concern.

-10-
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MISSION

RS RN

The Seymour Osman Community Center
and Youth Safe Haven is a 501(c)(3)
non-profit organization affiliated with
the Dover Housing Authority. We
provide academic support, life skills
training, and recreational
opportunities for local youth.



DOVER HOUSING AUTHORITY

SEYMOUR OSMAN COMMUNITY CENTER & YOUTH SAFE HAVEN
POSITIONS AND SALARIES

Director of Family Services (Stacey Kearns)
Salarv $45,000.00
Benefits $19,733.08
25% of sulary paid out of 21 Century = $11,250.00
25% of benefits paid out of 21" Century = $4,933.27

21* Century Project Céordinalor (Brandy Barshaw)
Salary 320.563.65
Benatits 51,804 39

Homework Lab Leader 1 (To be hired by Sept, 1)
4 hours/week at $17.00/hour for 37 weeks
Salary $2,516.00
Benefits $227.82

Homework Lab Leadcer I (2 positions, To be hired by Sept. 1)
3 hourstweek at $18.00/hour for 37 weeks
Salary $1,998.00 x2=3,996.00
Benefits $180.91 x2=361.82

Homework Lab Leader 11 (To be hired by Sept. 1)
4 hours/week at $18.00/hour for 37 weeks
Salary $2,664.00
Benefits $241.22

Homework Lab Leader 111 (To be hired by Sept. 1)
2 lhours/week at $19.00/hour for 37 weeks
Salary $1,406.00
Benefits $127.31

Homework Lab Leader IV (To be hired by Sept. 1)
3 hours/week at $22.00/iour for 37 weeks
Salary $2,442.00
Benefits $221.12

Homework Lab Leader 1V (3 positions, to be hired by Sept. 1)
5 hours/week at $22.00/hour for 37 weeks
Salary $4,070.00 x3=5812210.00
Benefits $368.53 x3=51,105.58

Youth Development Coordinator (5 positions. to be hired)**
17.5 hours/week at §9.00/lour for 10 weeks
Salary $1,575.00 ~x5=2587,875.00
Benetits $142.61 X5 =S8713.05

40 Hamoshire Circle Dover. NH 03820  Ph: 603.749.6692 Web: www.dhasocc.ore



Stacey Kearns

Education  Masters in Social Work, University of New Hampshire, Durham, NH 2011
Phi Alpha Honor Society member. Electives in Child and Adolescent Risk and Resiliency,
Program and Resource Development, Social Action in the Dominican Republic,
Therapeutic Interventions with Children.

Bachelor of Arts, Drew University, Madison, NJ 2007
Behaviora! Science major, Classics minor, Pan-African Studies minor.
Cum Laude. Courses in psychology, sociology, and anthropology. Drew International
Seminar in West Africa.

Experience Director of Family Services, Dover Housing Authority, Dover, NH 2014-present

¢ Oversee staff and afterschool programming at the Seymour Osman Community Center
and Youth Safe Haven and Woodman Park School.

« Implement and maintain innovative programming to meet the needs of children and
families of Mineral and Whittier Park.

« Procure essential program support through grant writing and fundraising.

» Represent the Community Center to the general public and reinforce a positive public
perception of Dover’s public housing neighborhbood.

« Manage all records related to grant reporting requirements.

e Attend community meetings, conferences and workshops directly related to the mission
of the Community Center and the Dover Housing Authority.

* Manage budgets related to program operations.

Service & Training Manager, Old Navy, Manchester, NH and Kittery, ME 2013-2014
* Responsible for hiring, training, coaching, motivating, and recognizing.
+ Responsible for driving results of store performance including sales, brand loyalty,
customer satisfaction, and employee satisfaction.
¢ Accountable for monitoring and maintaining company policy and procedure, a safe
environment, and store compliance requirements.

Pricing Specialist, Old Navy, Newington, NH 2013\
¢ Lead team in executing pricing and marketing tasks.
»  Assisted with managerial tasks including store opening and closing.

Sales Assocfate, Old Navy, Newington, NH 2011-present
¢  Provide customer service to all customers in the store.
e Primary trainer of new associates assigned to learn the cashier position.

Post Adoption Social Worker, Child & Family Services, Lawrence, MA 2012-2013
« Provided home-based family stabilization services to adoptive families.
» Provided advocacy and coordination for families to gain access to long-term supportive

services.
« Cocrdinated and facilitated support groups and respite opportunities.
interim School Social Worker, Winnacunnet High School, Hampton, NH 2011

e Available to students for short-term, crisis and on-going therapeutic support.

+ Assessed students who are allegedly being abused or neglected as reported by staff,
students or parents and coordinated reporting to DCYF and administration.

» Homeless Education Agency Liaison coordinating access to education for homeless high
school students in accordance with the McKinney Vento Act. :



Volunteer Wo

Certifications

Counselor, The Summer Camp, Bridgton, ME 2011
« Lived in cabin with girls from low-income families and foster homes acting as positive

role model.
» Facilitated literacy program for all campers, ages 6 through 16.
Intern, Seacocast Youth Services, Seabrook, NH 2010-2011

« Clinical work with individual students at Seabrook Middle School.
¢ Assisted in program evaluation.
e Contributed to writing grants for Seacoast Youth Services and School Administrative

Unit 21.
« Co-facilitated Adolescent Substance Abuse group and Girls Groups for 5" and 6" grade
students.
Group Counselor Intern, Direction Behavioral Health, Seabrook, NH 2010-2011

e  Clinical work with groups.

¢ Maintained positive group culture through modeling healthy relationships and
interactions.

¢ Ensured client safety.

intern, Lutheran Social Services, Concord, NH 2009-2010
e Therapeutic Family Connections department
¢« Assisted Family Specialists with case management including weekly home visits and
independent living skill instruction.
o  Supervised visits between foster children and biological families.

Administrative Assistant, Rockingham Nutrition & Meals on Wheels, Brentwood, NH 2007-2010
¢ Client Intake Specialist for agency providing meals and services to the elderly.
¢« Responsible for maintaining client registrations with the State of NH to ensure agency
credit and funding for meals served, '
¢ Supported staff members at 12 meal site locations.

Client Advocate, Roots & Wings Foundation of New Jersey, Denvilfe, NJ 2006-2007
¢« Provided in-home therapy to assist aged out foster youth to gain independence.
e« Completed assessments and treatment plans for clients.
e  24-hour on-call responsibility.
« Case management services and appropriate linkage and advocacy in the community.

Intern, Big Brothers Big Sisters of Morris, Bergen, and Passaic Counties, Parstppany, NJ 2006
*  Assisted Match Support Specialists
s  Supervision of traditional matches and school/site-based programs.
»  Assisted with volunteer and client interviews and training.

rk  American Cancer Society
* Relay for Life of Rochester
+ Member of planning committee for American Cancer Society walk in 2009, 2010.
e Registration Chair 2009.
« Making Strides Against Breast Cancer
¢ Event day volunteer 2008, 2010, 2011, 2013

The Summer Camp
¢ Volunteer Counselor 2013

American Heart Association CPR certification
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Brandy Barshaw

Obijective

To obtain a posttion working part-time for Great Bay Limousine Inc.

Experience

2013-present Dover School Department Dover.NH

Principal Assistant

& Assist in the main office by answering phones. data entry, filing and maintaining
data for reporting.

e LEnroll elementary aged children in Woodman Park School.

e Supervise recess {or 600 children.

e Supervise Noon Aides.

e Implement and maintain behavior standards for children.

e Substitute teach

e  Work with new families to provide information, ease fears and help them
transition into Woodman Park School. '

® Provide local, state and national resources to families in need.

® Assist teachers, parents and children with daily needs.

2004-present Scymour Osman Community Center Dover, NH

Project Coordinator

Implementing, monitoring and maintaining programs for children gradesi-4 at
Woodman Park School.

Enroll elementary school students in SOCC Afterschool Program.

Implements and maintains youth programs at Woodman Park School (primarily)
and at the Seymour Osman Community Center (periodically).

Facilitate academically linked programming for children in grades 1-4.
Manage all essential data collection (at Woodman Park School) relative to 21
CCLC guidelines.

Monitor progrant attendance and billing for program participation.

Broker and attend meetings between school personnel and parents to ensure
optimal service delivery specific to children’s needs.

Coordinate support services for families and children in need.

Assist in planning and attends field trips.

Meet regularly with staff at Woodman Park School.
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Brandy Barshaw

o Meet regularly with Director of Family Services.
e (reate. order and maintain monthly snack schedule for 100 children.
-« Provide support to contracted emplovees. AmeriCorps volunteers, interns. andg
volunteers.

Youth Development Coordinator
® Desizn and implement educational activities and curriculum for a Kindergarten
through fourth grade after school program.
® Establish and maintain relationships with parents, school adiministration and
community organizations. '
o  Delegare tasks to volunteers and work study staff.

o Generate and distribute monthly newsletter for Dover Housing Authority community.

2001-2003 Strafford County Head Start Dover. NH

Chairperson, Strafford County Parent Advisory Board
¢ Responsibilities included hiring an firing of staff, managing fiscal budget, and
coordination of county activities such as fundraising and open enrollment
period.
e Represented county at New England regional conterences.
o Delegated tasks to parents and regional Head Start sites.

2001-2002 New Hampshire Head Start Dover, NH

Chairperson, New Hampshire State Advisory Board
» (Coordinated state wide conferences
» Facilitated discussions regarding agency concerns: particularly proposed changes
nationally and the potential effects at the state level.

2001-2003 In-Home Day Care Dover, NH

Owner
¢ Operated an in-home day care for five children ages newborn to seven.
o Coordinated in-home therapeutic services for a child with autism.
+ Managed and generated monthly invoices for customer self-pay accounts and
New Hampshire Title XX
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Brandy Barshaw

Education

2005-2007 Southern New Hampshire University Portsmouth, NH

Bachelor of Arts
e Major Social Science
* 35GPA
* Not complete

Additional Skills
e Computer skills include Microsoft Word. Excel, Publisher, Power Point. and
Internct applications.
* 100+ hours of Professional Development in various areas

Certifications
e American [leart Association Heart Saver and First Aid

References
¢ Refercnces are available on request
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Virginia M. Barry, Ph.D. Paul Lesther
Commissioner of Education Deputy Commissioner of Education
Tol 603-271-3144 Tel. 803-271-3801
STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

101 Pieasant Street
Concord, N.H. 03301
FAX 803-271-19583
Citizens Services Line 1-800-338-9900

May 14, 2014

Her Excellency, Governor Margaret Wood Hassan
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord. NH 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Education to exercise a renewal option fo granf funds to
the Dover Housing Authority, Dover, NH (Vendor Code 159988). orfiginally approved by -
Govemor and Council on 06/19/13, item #202, to confinue to offer extended day
programming for youth and their families, effective upon Governor and Council
approval for the period of July 1, 2014 through June 30, 2015 in an amount not to
exceed $94,306.88. 100% Federal Funds.

Funding is available in account titted 21st Century Community Leaming Center

FY 15

06-56-56-562010-32770000-072-500577 Grants-Federal $94,306.88

Explangtion

The United States Department of Education legisiation allows for five year 21% Century
Community Learning Center grants to serve youth and their families during the out of
school time hours. Grants are annually pending the receipt of an Annuat Performance
Report that indicates sufficient progress and the availability of federal funds.

New Hampshire anticipates a FY 2014 grant award in the amount of $5,348.665.00 from
ihe United States Department of Education under Title IVB, the 21 Century Community
Learning Center program. This program provides grants to inner city and rural schools,
communily based organizations, youth development agencies and other educational
agencies to provide expanded learning opportunities outside of regular school hours for

TDD Access: Reiay NH 1-800-735-2964
EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER- EQUAL EDUCATIONAL OPPORTUNITIES



Her Excellency, Governor Margaret Wood Hassan
and The Honorable Council

Page Two

May 14, 2014

children in a safe environment. The programs will offer students a broad amray of
additional services, programs, and activities such as tutorial services, youth
development activities, drug and violence prevention, counseling programs, art, music,
recreation programs, and technology education. These programs and services are
designed to reinforce and complement the regular academic program of the
participating students.

The program services provided by the grant cited above will be coordinated by Dover
Housing Authority in collaboration with the Dover School District. This collaborative
approach will serve elementary Dover School District youth and their families.

The competition process inciudes: a Bidders Conference, publication of the RFP,
technical support during the proposal wriling process, review and scoring of the
proposal by three reviewers, and award determinations based on this review process,
The reviewers for all proposals include representation from: experienced 21st Century
Community Learning Center and school day professionals, higher education, state
agencies and community based organizations.

This is the second yeor of a five year grant. The renewal option is included as those
selected for funding are eligible for five years of funding based on previous successful

progress.

In the event Federal Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not be
requested 1o support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

Vlr;jr:aM Barmy, Ph.D.

Commissioner
VMB:SB
Enclosures

TDD Access: Relay NH 1-800-735-2904
EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER- EQUAL EDUCATIONAL OPPORTUNITIES



OBM FORM 4 PROJECT APPLICATION BUDGET AND DESIGNATION OF APPLICATION MANAGER! PROJECT MANAGER

w2008

PROJECT # 136277
CHANGE # Original
Federal/State Program Title; SOCC Afterschool Program PAGE 1 of 2
FROM: Seymour Osman Community Center TO: Suzanne Birdsall-Stone TYPE OF CHANGE
c/o Dover Housing Authority NH Department of Education BUDGET
62 Whittier Street . State Office Park South X FUND AUTH
Dover, NH 03820 101 Pleasant Street FISCAL AGENT
SAUMRA: #11 Concord, New Hampshire 03301-3860 OTHER
Proposed Project Title: SOCC Afterschool Program Project Period: July 1, 2014 to: June 30,2015
**The following information is required for al) projects***
PROJECT MANAGER: NAME: __ Thad Mandsager TITLE: Director of Family Services
ADDRESS: 62 Whittier Street, Oover, NH 03820 TELEPHONE: 603-749-6692
E-MAIL ADDRESS: ___thad@doverhousingauthority.org FAX: 603-7426911
FINANCIAL CONTACT: NAME:  Wendy M. Tenney TELEPHONE: 603-742-5804
E-MAIL ADDRESS: __wendy@doverhousingauthority.org FAX: 603-742-6911

The above named person is designated as Project Manager. | hold the Project Menager responsibie for implementing the project in accordance with the approved project, for remalining
within the budget limitations, for ensuring that only authorized items required to implement the project are charged to the projact, and for initiating raquest to amend the approved project.
No services or supplies wiil be ordersd or charged to the project without written approval of the Project Manager.

THE APPLICANT AGENCY AGREES AND CERTIFIES THAT:
1. This grant will be administered in accordance with ths applicable provisions of the following tederal laws and regulations.

a. Education Department General Administrative Regulations {(EDGAR) in Title 34 Code of Federal Regulations (CFR), Parts 74, 75, 76, 77, 79, 80, 82, 85, 35; Civil Rights Regulations in 34 CFR,
Parts 100 through 106, and specific program laws and regulations.

b. Any amendments in effect on the date of this grant award or to becomae effective during the project period are incorporated.
. Grant accounting and financial reporting will be in accordance with New Hampshire Department of Education “Federal Funds Financial Management Manual™.
Authorized funds will be obligated and expended only for the purpose described In the approved project proposal and budget.
Audits will be in compliance with the Single Audit Act Amandments of 1996 (P.L. 104-158) and U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circulars.
. Project approval, if given, will be on the condition that full funding of the Approved Budget and payment by the grantor are contingant upon the availability of a Federal Grant and

Appropriation Authority approved by the General Court of New Hampshire or the Governor and Council of this State for this purpose. Neither the State nor the Department of Education
shall be liable for payments under this grant sxcept from such funds.

"n s wN

FISCAL AGENT - MAKE CHECKXS PAYABLE TO: APPROVED INDIRECT COST RATE: 0%
Seymour Osman Community Center
c/o Dover Housing Authority Waendy M. Tenney, Finance Director
62 Whittier Street

Dover, NH 03820




OBM FORM ¢

BUDGET SUMMARY BY OBJECT AND FUNCTION CODES

(See NH Financial Accounling Handbook 1889 Edition pages A-38 through A-75)

OBJECT

1000 2000 2 5000
CODE INSTRUCTION SUPPORT ADMIN INDIRECT TOTAL
100 $57,407.20 COST BELOW 87,497.20
200 $7,226.18 CANNOT 7,225.18
300 $15,000.00 INCLUOE AuODIT 15,000.00
400 $0.00 FEES WHEN A -
500 $1,084.50 PROJECT LINE 1,084.50
600 $3,800.00 TTEM INCLUDES 3,500.00
700 $0.00 AUDIT FEES -
800 -
208 -
TOTALS - $94,306.88 - - - - 94,306.88
DETAIL OF PROPOSED BUDGET tr
FUNCTION OBJECT BUDGET DETAILED FUNCTION OBJECT BUDGET DETAILED
CODE CODE AMOUNT INFORMATION CODE CODE AMOUNT INFORMATION
221 11 $67.497.20 [Salaries
2210} 2 $376.33 Junempioyment
2210% 211 $0.00 [HesthMedica!
2210) 212 $83.73 jDental
2210] 213 $7.20 JLif® Insurance
210] 214] $72.00 JSTD & LTD
2210 220{ $5.183.54 JFiCA
2210) 230} $1,181.52 JPension
2210y 260 $340.88 fworkers Compensation}
2210] 320] $12,000.00 {Contractua
2210} 329 $1.500.00 JProfessional Dev
2210 340 $1,500.00 [Data/Evatuation
2210] 531 $608.00 jPhone
2210} 534 $73.50 [Posiage
2210] S $403.00 [Trave!
2210} 610] $3.500.00 {Supplies
SOB TOTALITOTAL $9430688) JTTTTTTITTTTT TOTAUTOTAL - TTITTTITTTTTT

Zow NS Ml



State of Netw Hampshire
Bepartment of State

CERTIFICATE

1, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby
certify that THE SEYMOUR OSMAN COMMUNITY CENTER AND YOUTH SAFE
HAVEN is a New Hampshire nonprofit corporation formed April 29, 2002. [ further
certify that it is in good standing as far as this office is concerned, having filed the

retumn(s) and paid the fees required by law.

In TESTIMONY WHEREOF, [ hereto
set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,
this 16" day of April A.D. 2014

ey Skl

William M. Gardner
Secretary of State
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ACORDS CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE o/2af200s

REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND,
BELOW, THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED

EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES

IMPORTANT: H the cartificats holdar Is an ADOITIONAL INSURED, the

cortificate holder In lleu of such sndorsement{s).

the terms and conditiona of the policy, cettaln policles may require an sndorssment. A statsmant on this certificate does not confer rights (o the

policy(les) must be endorsed. If SUBROGATION 1S WAIVED, subject to

PROOVCER

D.B. Warlick & Co.
P O Box 1260

69 Lafayette Rd.

| INSURER{S) AFFORDING COVERAGE

Wnu\hon Flidbotte, CISR
PHONE (603) 964-6065

-kf1libottefdbwarlick.com

Im_w)nu-!on

MACS

North Hampton NH 03862 3 a:Philadelphia Indemnity

WSURED i mgunean Mount Vernon Fire Insurance
Seymour Oszan Comaunity Center & INSURER G ;

Youth S8afe Haven INSURER D :

c/o Dover Housing Authority, 62 Whittier St [ iMSURERE :

Dover NH 03820 INSURER P+

_COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER:13/14 Master REVISION NUMBER:

INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION

THIS 1S TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTEQ BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERICD

CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOVWN MAY MAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WATH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS

o TYPE OF INWURANCE P POLICY BUMBER usats
| QEMERAL LANILITY EACH OCCURNENCE 3 1, 000, 000
X | COMMERCIAL GEMERAL LABQLITY | PREMISES (Faocogrencer |3 1,000,000
A cuasme { x [ oceun PUPK1066255 F/"/"" /2472014 { e exp Ay am parson) | 3 5,000
- PERSONAL L ADVINIURY |3 1,000,009
| GENERAL AGGREGATE ) 2,000,000
GENL AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLES PER: PRODUCTS -coMPOPAGG |8 . 2,000,000
xlroucr[ 125 [ o b
] SRBINED SWOLE LWt
AUTOMOBILE LANLITY (8 st ~ s
] ANY A0 BOOLY IRRRY (Perpenon) { $
| ALL OWNED SCHEOULED 2o0x :
— ATes ﬂé’.&'&mo ﬁk%m‘ﬁ%% .
anf neRED ALTOS ASTOS M 3
]
| Jumeretawal | {occua EACH OCCURRENCE 3
EXCESS LAB CLAMS-MADE AGGREGATE 3
1) | [ rerewmons 3
WORKERS COMPENSATION | ﬁsﬁf& l QT
AND ENPLOTEAS YiN
ANY PROPRICT TNEREXECUTIVE E.L EACH ACCIDENT 3
OFICERMEMAER EXCLUDED? NIA
{Mandatary bn NH] |E.L OISEASE - EAEMPLOYES 3
DES AP RON OF GPERATIONS beiow £ DISEASE - POUCY LM | §
B [Directore & Officers 20077478 (DEO) §/29/2013 [8/29/2014 | gecn Ciaim & AGoregen $1,000,000
Ezploymant Practicas NDO20077878 (DEO) r/“/“” /29/2014 | Eoch Clam & Aggreosse 81,000,000

DEACAIPTIION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (AMach ACORD 191, A ) R Schadule, ¥ more epace I8 required)
EZvidence of coverage
CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

NH Department of Education

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRHIED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE BXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WiLL BE DEUVERED iN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

State Office Park South
101 Pleasant Street
Concord, NH 03301-3860

AUTHORIZED AEPRESENTATVE

= —_
Edvard Young/KF Gt naes 7 Y A

ACORD 25 (2010/06)
INSO25 (201005101

© 1988-2010 ACORD CORPORATION. Al rights reserved.

The ACORD name and iogo are registered marks of ACORD
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H CPA VA, CJussph Wolverton, CPa_ (VA

Mara 8L
Lage A Raberge, CI00

INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANT'S REVIEW REPORT

To The Board of Directors
Seymour Osman Community Center & Youth Safe Haven
Dover, New Hampshirc

We have reviewed the accompanying statement of financial position of Seymour Osmar Community
Center & Youth Safe Haven (a nonprofit organization) as of June 30, 2013, and the related statements of
activities, functional expenses and cash flows for the year then ended. A review includes primarily applying
analytical procedures to management’s financial data and making inquiries of Organization management. A
review is substantially less in scope than an audit, the objective of which is the expression of an opinion
regarding the financial statements as a whole. Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America and for
designing, implementing, and maintaining intemal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation
of the financial statements.

Our responsibility is to conduct the review in accordance with Statements on Standards for Accounting and
Review Services issued by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require
us to perform procedures to obtain limited assurance that there are no material modifications that should be -
made to the financial statements. We believe that the results of our procedures provide a reasonable basis
for our report.

Based on our review, with the exception of the matter described 1n the following paragraph, we are not
aware of any material modifications that should be made to the accompanying financial statements in order
for them to be in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

As disclosed in Note 2 to the financial statements, accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America require the consolidation of financially related non-profit organizations. Management
has informed us that the Organization’s accounts have not been consolidated with the Dover Housing
Authority (DHA). The effect of this departure on the Organizations financial position, activities, and cash
flows has not been determined.

Ouellette & Associates, PA.
Certified Public Accountants

December 12, 2013
Lewiston, Maine

1111 Lisbon Steeet « Lewiston, Maine 04240 = Telephone: (207) 786-0328  FAX: (207) 783-9377 » wiww.vacpas.net



SEYMOUR OSMAN COMMUNITY CENTER & YOUTH SAFE HAVEN

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

JUNE 30, 2013

ASSETS
ASSETS
Cash 3 8,313
Grants Receivable 27,783
TOTAL ASSETS $ 36,09
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable s (7
Due 10 Dover Housing Authority 35,967
Refundable Advances 1,236
Total Liabilities 37,320
NET ASSETS
Unrestricted (4,549)
Temporarily Restricted 3,325
Total Net Assets (1,224)
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS $ 36,046

See accompanying notes and independent accountant’s review report.
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SEYMOUR OSMAN COMMUNITY CENTER & YOUTH SAFE HAVEN
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 130, 2013

Temporarily
Unrestricted Restricted Total
SUPPORT AND REVENUE
Contributions:
Dover Housing Authority - Monetary Funding $ 74,202 S - S 74202
Dover Housing Authority - Donated Facility 87,198 - 87,198
Dover Housing Authority - Donated Overhead Costs 26,857 20,857
Other Miscellaneous Contributions 4,461 31,325 7,786
Grant Revenue:
215t Century Community Learning Center Grant 50,030 - 90,030
Women's Fund of New Hampshire 4,240 - 4,240
SES Tutoring Program 57,070 - 57,070
Mcasured Progress 5,000 - 5,000
Service Fees 17,577 . 17,577
Special Events Revenue 10,040 -
Less: Costs of Direct Benefits to Donors {455)
Net Revenue from Special Events 9.585
Other Revenue 4,482 - 4482
Intercst [ncome 20 - 20
TOTAL SUPPORT AND REVENUE 180,722 3,325 374,462
EXPENSES
Program Expenses 346,421 - 346,421
Management and General 18,036 18,036
TOTAL EXPENSES 364,457 - 364,457
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 16,265 3325 19,590
NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR (20814) (20,814)
NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR $ (4549 S 3,325 S (1,224)

Seec accompanying notes and independenl accountant’s review repost.

3.



SEYMOUR OSMAN COMMUNITY CENTER & YOUTH SAFE HAVEN

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Program Management
Expenses and General Total

Salaries and Wages S 137,723 $ - S 137,723
Payroll Taxes and Benefits 55482 - 55,482

Total Personnel Expenses 193,205 - 193,205
Rental Expense 78,478 8,720 87,198
Direct Program Expenses - Contracted Services 31,159 - 31,159
Direct Program Expenses - Other 12,868 - 12,868
Utilities 13,190 1,466 14,656
Supplies and Matenals 1,596 - - 1,596
Professional Fees 4,500 - 4,500
Maintenance 4,352 483 4,835
Telephone and Intemnet 1,776 - 1,776
Insurance 3,611 - 3,611
Training 692 - 692
Travel and Conferences 134 - 134
Printing and Copying 792 - 792
Postage 68 - 68
Bookkeeping - 1,367 7,367

TOTAL EXPENSES $ 346,421 $ 18,036 M) 364,457

See accompanying notes and independent accountant’s review report.

4.



SEYMOUR OSMAN COMMUNITY CENTER & YOUTH SAFE HAVEN
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Change in Net Assets
Adjustments to Reconcile Change in Net Assets to
Net Cash Used by Operating Activities:
(Increase) Decrease in Operating Assets:
Grants Receivable,
Increase (Decrease} in Operating Liabilities:
Accounts Payable
Refundable Advances

NET CASH USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Net Payments to Dover Housing Authority

INCREASE IN CASH

CASH AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH AT END OF YEAR

See accompanying notes and mdependent accountant’s review report.

-5-

$ 19,590

(11,568)

(785)
(66)

7,171

(6,879)
292
8,021

s 831



SEYMOUR OSMAN COMMUNITY CENTER & YOUTH SAFE HAVEN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30,2013

NOTE It

NOTE 2:

ORGANIZATION AND NATURE QF ACTIVITIES

Seymour Osman Community Center & Youth Safe Haven (SOCC) is a private nonprofit
organization affiliated with the Dover Housing Authority (DHA). SOCC was formed by
DHA and both organizations share many of the same board members. In addition, DHA is
currently the primary supporter of SOCC. The SOCC’s mission is to provide positive youth
development programs, family suppon and education about drugs and alcohol.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Reporting Entity

The accompanying financial statements are those of only SOCC and do not include the
accounts of Dover Housing Authority. Management has indicated that the Organization is
financially related to the Dover Housing Authority {DHA). DHA has a controlling financial
interest through its voting interest in the Board of the Organization and DHA has an
econoric interest by providing significant support to the Organization. As a result, the
financial statements of the Orgamzation should be consolidated with DHA under generally
accepted accounting principles.

Accounting Method
The accounts of the Organization are maintained in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America on an accrual basis.

Basis of Presentation
The Organization is required to report information regarding its financial position and
activities according to three classes of net assets as follows:

Unresiricted Net Assets — Net assets that arc not subject to donor-imposed
stipulations.

Temporarily Restricted Net Assets — Net assets subject to donor-imposed
stipulations that limit the use of the donated funds. When the time restriction
ends or when the purpose restriction is accomplished, temporarily restricted net
assets are reclassified to unrestricted net assets and reported in the statement of
activities as net assets released from restrictions.

Permanently Restricted Net Assets ~ Net assets subject to donor-imposed
stipulations that they be maintained permanently by the Organization. Generally,
the donors of these assets permil the Organization to use all or part of the income
carned on any related investments for general or specific purposes.

At June 30, 2013, the Organization has two classes of net assets; unresticied and
temporarly restricted.

-6-



SEYMOUR OSMAN COMMUNITY CENTER & YOUTH SAFE HAVEN

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

JUNE 30, 2013

NOTE 2:

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Grants Receivable
Grants receivable consist pnimanly of state and local community grants. Management

" believes that balances carried are fully collectible. Accordingly, no allowance for doubtful

accounts is required. When management detersnines accounts are uncollectible, they will be
directly charged to operations. Management believes such amounts would be immateral.

Equipment

[t is the Organization’s policy to capitalize equipment with a cost of over $5,000 if
purchased, and a fair value of $5,000 or more if the equipment is donated. Donated
equipment is reported as unrestricted contributions unless the donor has restricted the
donated asset to a specific purpose. Assets donated with explicit restrictions regarding their
use and contributions of cash that must be used to acquire equipment are reported as
restricted contributions. Equipment is depreciated using the straight-line method over the
estimated useful lives of the assets. All of the Organization’s equipment was fully
depreciated at June 30, 2013.

Income Taxes

The Organization is exempt from federal income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the
Internal Revenue Code and did not conduct unrelated business activities. Therefore, no
provision has bcen madc for federal income taxes in the accompanying financial
statements. Management has determined that the Organization does not have any uncertain
tax positions and associated unrecognized benefits that matenally impact the financial
statements or related disclosures. Since tax matters are subject to some degree of
uncertainty, there can be no assurance that the Organization’s tax retums will not be
challenged by the taxing authonties and that the Organization will not be subject to
additional 1ax, penalties and interest as a result of such challenge. Generally, the
Organization’s tax returns remain subject 1o examination for three years afler they were
filed.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actua)
results could differ from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivaleats

The Organization considers all highly liquid debt instruments purchased with a matunty of
three months or less to be cash equivalents. The Organization had no cash equivalents at
June 30, 2013.

.7



SEYMOUR OSMAN COMMUNITY CENTER & YOUTH SAFE HAVEN

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

JUNE 30, 2013

NOTE 2:

NOTE 3:

NOTE 4:

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Subsequent Events

Events that occur after the statement of financial position date but before the financial
statements were available to be tssued must be evaluated for recognition or disclosure.
Subsequent events that provide evidence about conditions that existed at the statement of
financial position date are required to be recognized in the accompanying financial
statements. Subsequent events that provide evidence about conditions that existed after
the statement of financial position date require disclosure in the accompanying notes.
Management evaluated the activity of the Organization through December 12, 2013, the
date the financial statements were available to be issued, and concluded that no
subsequent events have occurred that would require recognition in the financial
statements or disclosure in the notes to the financial statements.

GRANTS RECEIVABLE

The Orpanization has been awarded several grants to further its goal of providing youth
programs, family support and drug and alcohol education. These grants are considered
exchange transactions. Accordingly, revenue is eamed as the program service is provided
and expenses are recognized as incurred. Grants Receivables are due in less than one year
and consist of the following at June 30, 2013:

21* Century Community Learning Center Grant $ 14,133

Supplemental Education Services Grant 13,650

Total Grants Recejvable $ 27,783
REFUNDABLE ADVANCES

The Organization records grant awards accounted for as exchange transactions as refundable
advances until related services are performed, at which time they are recognized as revenue.
The activity in the refundable advance account is reported as follows:

Refundable Advances, Beginning of Year $§ 1,302
Grant Awards Received 156,340
Grant Expenditutes (156,406)
Refundable Advances, Ind of Year s 1,236



SEYMOUR OSMAN COMMUNITY CENTER & YOUTH SAFE HAVEN

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

JUNE 30, 2013

NOTE 5:

NOTE 6.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Common Control
SOCC and DHA share many of the same board members.

Donated Facilities

The DHA has donated the use of the facility occupied by SOCC without any stipulation as
to the occupancy period. For this reason the Organization recognized, at fair value, a
contribution and rental expense in the amount of $87,198 for the value of the rent during the
year.

Donated Overhead Costs

The DHA has funded certain other overhead costs on behalf of the SOCC. These costs are
treated as donations as DHA does not require the Organization to reimburse these costs.
Overhead costs funded by DHA arc as follows:

Utilities $14,655
Bookkeeping 7,367
Maintenance 4,835

326,857

Personnel Expenses
The Organization is staffed by employees of DHA. The costs associated with these

employees arc reimbursed to DHA and are reported as Salaries and Wages and Payroll
Taxes and Benefits for financial statement reporting purposes. For the year ended Junc 30,
2013, SOCC paid DHA $225,969 for personnel costs. At June 30, 2013, SOCC owed DHA
$35,967 for June 2013 personnel costs.

Comnunity Center Funding
During the year ended June 30, 2013, DHA provided funding towards the community
centers operations.  SOCC unhzed funding totaling $74,202 towards the support of its
community center programs.

Financial Support

Presently, DHA has agreed to provide funding to SOCC on an as needed basis. For the year
ended June 30, 2013, DHA provided approximately 49% of the Organization’s total
funding.

CONCENTRATION QF CREDIT RISK

The Organization maintains its cash balances with one financial instiution.  Accounts are
insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) up to $250,000. The
Organization’s cash balances were fully insured at June 30, 2013.



SEYMOUR OSMAN COMMUNITY CENTER & YOUTH SAFE HAVEN

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

JUNE 30,2013

NOTE 7: RESTRICTIONS OF NET ASSETS

Temporarily restricted net assets consist of the following:
Contributions restricted for the funding of:

HOOPLA Festival & Fashion Show $ 3,325

-10-
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MISSION

The Seymour Osman Community Center and
Youth Safe Haven is a 501(c)(3) non-profit
organization affiliated with the Dover Housing
Avthority. We provide academic support, life
skills training, and recreational opporfunities

for local youth.
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DOVER HOUSING AUTHORITY

SEYMOUR OSMAN COMMUNITY CENTER & YOUTH SAFE HAVEN

POSITIONS AND SALARIES
jrector of Family Servi d Mandsager
Salary $43,882.00
Benefits $9,054.39
25% of salary paid ous. of 21" Century = $10,970.50
25% of benefits paid out of 21" Century = $2,263.59
“Cen Project inator (Brandy Barshaw
Salary 320,265.70
Benefits $1,750.67
mework Lab 11 (To be hired by Sept. 1
3 hourshveek at $18.00/howur for 39 weeks
Salary $2,106.00
Benefits s 13648

Homework Lab Leader 11 (To be bired by Sept. 1
4 hours/week a1 $18.00/hour for 32 weeks

Salary - $2,304.00
Benefits S 20401
Homework Lab Leader III (To be hired b 1
4 hours/week a1 $19.00/hour for 37 weeks
Salary $2812.00
Benefits S 249.00

Homework Lab Leader 1V (To be hired by Sept. 1)
5 hours/week a1 $22.00/mour for 37 weeks

Salary $4,070.00
Benefits $ 360.40
Homew b 3 positigos, to be bired b ¢ 1
7 hoursweek af $22.00/hour for 37 weeks
Salary $5,698.00 x3 $17,094.00
Benefits $ 504.56 x3 $1513.68
th Development C to| itioas. to be hired)**
12.5 hours'week a1 39.00/%our for 10 weeks
Salary $1,575.00 x5 $7,875.00
Benefits $ 13947 x5 $ 697.35

40 Hamoshire Circle Dover. NH 03820 Ph: 603.749.6692  Fx: 603.742.2493

web: www.dhasocc.ore



EXPERIENCE

Julv 2005 -
Present

July 2004 -
February 2005

July 2602 - Julv
2004

EDUCATION

January 1999 -
September 2001
Mav 2005

LEADERSHIP AND VOLUNTEER EXPERIENCE

Seprember 2007 -
September 2013

THAD MANDSAGER
279 Central Ave., Apt. 515 * Dover, NH 03820 ¢ Phone (603) 749-4528
E-mai. thad.mandsager@comcast.net

Director of Family Services Dovelr, NH

Dover Housing Authority
*  Oversee staff and afrerschool programming at the Seymour Osman Communuty Center
and Youth Safe Haven and at Woodman Park School.

* Jmplement and maintain 1nnovative programming that meets the needs of children and
familics of Mineral and Whitner Park. '

*  Procure essenual program support through grantwriting and fundraising.

*  Represent the Commumty Ceunter to the general public and reinforce a posiuve public percepnon
of Dover’s pubhic housing neighbochood.

s Manage all records related 10 grant reporting requirements.

*  Artend community ineeungs, conferences, and workshops directly related to the mission of the
Community Center and the Dover Housing Authority.

*  Manage budgets related to program operations.

Independent Consultant Dover, NH
Mandsager and Associates I.LLC, Nottingham, NH

* Conducted literature review related to successful youth mentonng programs.

*  Wrote concept papers and grant proposals detailing mentonng program targeung local at-
risk youth.

Special Projects Coordinator Dover, NH

Dover Housing Authority

s Managed caseload of ten youth.

» Supervised afterschool program for at-risk teens (i conjunction with co-coordinator).

» Conducted education, cultural development, and service learning acuvities.

« MMaintained all records and reports related to program.

University of New Hampshire Durham, NH

° B.A., Social Work (Presidental Scholar, graduated Summa Cum Laude).

» Completed Fundamentals of Grantsmanship and Advanced Grantwntng  through
enrollment in Continuing Education.

Member, Board of Directors
Granite State Independent Living

» Drovided ovessight for organizauon that promotes life with independence for people
with disabilities through four core services: advocacy, independent Lving skills
truning, information and referral, and peer support.

November 2008 - Present Vice Chair

Dover Coalition for Youth

November 2009 -Present Member

NH Brain and Spinal Cord Injury Advisory Council



30 Addison Placc Dover, NH 03820 603.866.6008 bdeeb76:¢ email.com

Brandy Barshaw

Experience

2004-present Seymour Osman Community Center Dover, NH

Project Coordinator

Implement, monitor and maintain afterschool programs for children grades1-4 at
Woodman Park School.

Enroll elementary school students in SOCC Afterschool Program.

Facilitate academically linked programming for children in grades 1-4.

Manage all essential data collection (at Woodman Park School) relative 1o 21*
CCLC guidehnes.

Monitor program attendance and billing for program participation.

Broker and attend meetings between schoo! personnel and parents to ensure
optimal service delivery specific to children’s needs.

Coordinate support services for families and children in need.

Assist in planning field trips.

Meet regularly with staff at Woodman Park School.

Meet regularly with Director of Family Services.

Provide support 1o staff, contracted employees, AmeriCorps volunteers, intems,
and volunteers.

Youth Development Coordinator

® Designed and implemented educational activities and curriculum for a K-4
afterschool program.

® Established and maintained relationships with parents, school administration, and
communily organizations.

® Delegated tasks to volunteers and work-study staff.

® Generated and distributed monthly newsletter for Dover Housing Authority
community.

2010-present Prime Time All Star Cheer Gym ‘Barrington, NH

Assistant Coach

Work with special needs children, teaching them the basic skills of cheerleading.
Create and implement dance and cheer routines.
Create a positive inclusive environment.



30 Addison Place Dover, NH 03820 603.866.6008 bdeeb76iz gmail.com

2001-2003 Strafford County Head Start Dover, NH

Chairperson, Strafford County Parent Advisory Board
» Responsibilities included hiring and firing of staff, managing fiscal budget, and
coordination of county activities such as fundraising and open enroliment period.
e Represented county at New England regional conferences.
e Delcgated tasks to parcnts and regional Head Start sites.

2001-2002 ' New Hampshire Head Start Dover, NH

Chairperson, New Hampshire State Advisory Board
e Coordinated statewide conferences
e Facilitated discussions regarding agency concerns

2001-2003 In-Home Day Care Dover, NH

Owner
e Operated an in-home day care for five children ages newbom to seven.
» Coordinated in-home therapeutic services for a child with autism.
e Managed and generated monthly invoices for customer self-pay accounts and
New Hampshire Title XX :

Education
2005-2007 Southern New Hampshire University Portsmouth, NH

Bachelor of Ants
s Major: Social Science
« 35GPA
e Not complete

Additional Skills
¢ Computer skills include Microsoft Word, Excel, Publisher, Power Point, and
Internet applications.
e 100+ hours of Professional Development in various areas.

Certifications
e American Heart Association Heart Saver and First Aid

References
o References are available on request.
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FEREDT oy e s
Virginia M. Barry, PhD. Paul Leather
Commissioner of Education Commissioner of Education
Tel. 803-271-3144 Tel. 603-271-3801
'\ STATE OF NEW HQIPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION
101 Pleasant Street
Cancord, N.H.' 03301

FAX 803-271.1963
Citizens Services Line 1-800-339-9800

S92, Vo

May 15, 2013

Her Excellency, Govemor Margaret Wood Hassan
and the Honorable Council '

State House

Concord, NH 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Education to grant kunds to the Dover Housing Authority, Dover, NH
[Vendor Code 159988), to offer extended day programming for youth and their famifies pending
legislative approvatl of the next biennial budget. This grant will be in etfect upon Govemor and
Council approval from July 1, 2013 through Juné 30, 2014. Further authorize unencumbered
payment of said grant with intemal accounting control within the Department of Education. .This
grant will not exceed $89,125.00. 100% Federal Funds.

Funding for this request is available from:
EY 14

06-56-56-562010-32770000-072-500577 X $89,125.00
Department of Education, Division of Instruction,
21st Century Community Leoming Center Program

Subject to Governor and Council approval, outhofize the Department of Education to exercise
arenewal option on this grant for up to four additional fiscal years.

Exnlgngg_; ion

The United States Department of Education legislation allows for five yeor 21# Century
Community Learning Center grants to serve youth and their families during the out of school time
hours. Grants are annually pending the receipt of an Annual Performance Report that indicotes
sufficient progress and the availability of federal funds.

New Hampshire anticipates o FY 2014 grant award in the amount of $5,348,665.00 from the
United States Department of Education under the 21# Century Community Leaming Center
program. This program provides grants 1o inner city and rural schools, communily based
organizations, youth development agencies and other educational agencies to provide

TDD Access: Relay NH 1-800-735-2964
EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER- EQUAL EDUCATIONAL OPPORTUNITIES



Her Excellency, Govermor Margaret Wood Hassan
and The Honorable Council

Page Two

May 15, 2013

expanded learning opportunities ouiside of regular school hours for children in a safe

envionment. The programs will ofter students a broad amay of additional services, programs,
and activilies such as fulorial services, youth development activities, drug and violence
prevention, counseling programs, art, music, recreahon programs, and technology education,
These programs and services are designed to reinforce and complement the regular ocodem»c
program of the parﬂcnpohng students.

The program services prowded by the grant cited obove will be coordinated by Dover Housing
Authority in collaboration with the Dover School District. This collaborative approach will serve
elementary Dover School Disirict youth and their famifies.

Funding for this grant is provided by the 21t Century Community Learning Center program under
Part B of Title IV of the Elementary and Secondary Education Act [ESEA) of 1965, as amended. In
January 2013 the New Hampshire Depariment of Education issued o Request for Proposais [RFP)
soliciting proposals for these funds. School Districts, Community Based Organizations, and
Extended Day Programs were nolified through e-mail about the Bidders' Conference ond
publication of the online RFP. The projects funded demonsirated that parinerships between
school disticts and community based organizations have promise to help youth improve
acodemic achievement. Sixteen proposals were received and eleven were funded based ona
peer review process. Peer Reviewers worked in 1eoms of three to rate proposals based on the
RFP's matrix criteria. Each team had on expenenced 21 Century Community Leaming Center
“member to help steer the review and two other experienced professionals to create well-
balanced teams. The nine peer reviewers werg'a represented by experienced 21% Cenjury
Community Learning Center and school day professionals, higher education, the Department of
Health ond Human Services, and community bosed organizations. A list of reviewers is mctuded

in this packet.

Dover Housing Authority. in collaboration with the Dover School District, was one of eleven
proposdls selected for funding through a compemwe process using standard state procedures. -
We request a renewal opfion for four additional fiscal years since those selected for funding are
elfigible for five years of funding based on previous successful progress.

This is the first year of a five year grant. In the event Federal Funds are no longer available,
General Funds will not be requested fo support this program.

Respec tfully submmed

Virgin 'ét/‘g::y‘, Ph. D
Com ioner

VMB:SB
Enclosures

TOD Access: Relay NH 1-800-735-2964
EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER- EGJAL EDUCATIONAL OPPORTUNITIES
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New Hampshire Department of Education ‘
21" Century Community Learning Center Program (CCLC)
2013 Competition Reviewers ’ '

Gretchen Berger-Wabuti Volunteer New Hampshire, Director

Jan Caron ‘ Manchester Community;. College, Education Department Chair
lanine Lesser DHHS, Division of Fami& Assistance, TANF Program Specialist

Victor Maloney Seacoast Youth Service;, Director

Holly Morehouse Vermont Afterschool Ngtwork, Director

Rick Nannicelli Marlborough Elementary School, Principal

Barbara Russ Winooski School Distn'c;, VT, 21® CCLC Director

Cathy Paradis . Family School Connections Childcare Resource and Referral, Director

Meredith Stidham Granite State United Way, Community Impact Southern Region, Director
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State of Nefo Hampshive
Bepartment of State

CERTIFICATE

I, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the Slate of New Hamp;hirc, do hereby
certify that THE SEYMOUR OSMAN COMMUNITY CENTER AND YOﬁTH SAFE
HAVEN is a New Hampshire nonprofit coxporatgon formed April 29, 2002. I further
certify that it is in good standing as far as this office is concemed,_haviné filed the

return(s) and paid the fees required by law.

In TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I hereto
‘set my hand and cause to be affixed
the Seal of the State of New. Hampshire,
this 10™ day of May A.D. 2013

Fy Bkl

William M. Gardner
_ Secretary of State
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PrimeX
m.mmw CERTIFICATE OF COVERAGE

The New Hampshire Public Risk Management Exchange (Primex’) is organized uMertheNewHanpsrum Revised Stahtes Annota
Pooled Risk Management Programs. in accordance with those statutes, its Trust Agreement and bylaws, Primex’ is authorized to pt\::’adgm?:k
management programs established for the benefit of political subdivisions in the State of New Hampshire.

Each member of Primex’ i entitied 1o the categories of coverage set forth below. In addition, Primex” may exiend the same coverage to non-members
However, any coverage extended lo @ non-member is Subject to ail of the terms, conditions, exdusloma,yamendmems. nies, poldesh;nd prooaduru
that are applicable to the members of Primex’, Including but not imited to the ﬁnalfand binding resolution of all claims and coverage disputes before the
Primex’ Board of Trustees. The Additional Covered Party’s per occurrence limit shall be deemed induded in the Member's per occumrence Imit. and
therefore shall reduce the Member's fimit of labiiity as set forth by the Coverage Documents and Dedlarations. The kmit shown may have been reduced
by claims paid on behalf of the member. General Llabiity coverage is limited 10 Coverage A (Personal lnjury Liabilty) and Coverage B (Property
Damage Liabiity) only, Coverage's C (Public Officials Emnrs and Omiasions), D (Unfair Employment Praclices), E (Employee Benefit Liability) and F
(Educator's Legal Liability Claims-Made Caverage) are excluded from this provision of coverage.

The below named entity is @ member in good standing_of the New Hampshire qublc Risk Management Exchange. The coverage provided may
hmva’.bemﬁsedatanyﬁmebytheacﬁorsoanmex’. As of the date this certificate is issued, the information setombelowamraecynﬂectsmé

categories of coverage estabiished for the cument coverage year.

This Certificate is issued as a matter of information only and confers no rights updn the cerlificate holder. This certificate does not amend, extend, or
alter the coverage afforded by the coverage categories listed below. :

Paricpeling Member Morrber Number: E Company Affordng Coverage:

Dover Schoal District : 900 NH Public Risk Management Exchange - Primex’ -
SAU #11 Bow Brook Place

McConnell Center 46 Donovan Street

61 Locust Street, Suite 409 Concord, NH 03301-2624

Dover, NH 03820

X BGeneral Llablllty (Occurrence Form) 7/1/2012 i 7112013
Professional Liability (describe) : General Aggregate $ 275,000 .
D Claims D Ocaxrence Fire Damage (Any one s

rLe)
Med Exp {(Any one person) | §

| | Automoblie Liabliity !

i : Combined Single Limit
Deductble  Comp and Coll: $1,000 sy sy ng s
Any auto : Aggregate 3
Workers' Compensation & Employers’ Liabibty | | Statutory
: Each Accident H
Disease — Each Employee H
Disease — Poicy Limit 3
i P ! Blankel Limit, Replacoment
Property (Special Risk includes Fire and Theft) P . )

Description: Use of facilities by the Dover School District for after school thath tutoring program. The certificate holder is named as
Additional Covered Party, but only to the extent liabiiity is based salely on the negligence or wrongful acts of the member, its employees,
agents, officials or volunteers. This coverage does not extend to others. Any llability resulting from the negligence or wrongful acts of the
Additional Covered Party, or their employees, agents, contractors, member;s, officers, directors or affiliates is not covered.

CERMFICATE HOLDER: | X | Additional Covered Party | | Loss Pnyu Primex: = NH Public Risk Management Exchange
: 8y Taavmy Duerex

Date:  3/1272013 _tdenver@nhprimex.om

Dover Housing Authority

Atin: Thad Mandsager Please direct inquires to:

40 Hampshire Circle Primex’ Clsima/Coverage Services
803-225-2841 phone

Dover, NH 03820 ] §03.228-3833 fax
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The Seymour Osman Cohrmumfy Center and
Youth Safe Haven is dr 501(c)(3) non-profit
organization affiliated with the Dover Housing
Authority. We provide academu' suppori, life
skills training, and recreahonal opportunities

for local youth.
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DOVER HOUSING AUTHORITY

SEYMOUR OSMAN COMMUNITY CENTER & YOUTH SAFE HAVEN

POSITIONS AND SALARIES
Director of Family Seryices (Thad Mapdsager)
Salary $43,882.00
Benefits $19,675.90
25% of salary paid out of 21 Century = $10,970.50
25% of benefiss paid out of 21" Century = $4,918.97
21" Century Project Cogrdinator n haw
Salary $31,301.00
Benefits $35,183.37
60% of salary peid out of 21" Century = :$18,780.60
60% of benefits paid out of 21" Censury = 1$21,110.02
0 La r [1 be hired by Sept. 1
7 hoursiweek at $19.00/kour for 39 weeks
Salary .$5,187.00
Benefits 3 487.44
n Lab Leader Il b by Sept. 1
7 hours/week at $19.00/hour for 39 weeks
Salary $5,187.00
Benefits 3 48744
Y elopment digator (To red)**
Salary " $2,700.00
Benefits 3 284.60
Youth Develo, nator (To be hired)**
Salary | 82,700.00
Benefits 3 284.60

**These two positions, paid out of 21" Century, are part-time positions (15 hours/week at 39.00/kour for 20
weeks) to be filled by December 15. Responsibilities lndude tatoring in homework lab and cofacilitating
enrichment programs during periods when UNH interns cnd work-study employees are on break.

40 Hamoshire Circle Dover. NH 03820  Ph: 603.749.6692

Fx: 603.742.2493 Web: www.dhasocc.orq
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SEYMOUR OSMAN COMMUNITY CENTER
& YOUTH SAFE HAVEN

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012
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OUELLETTE & ASSOCIATES, PA.
\\cammw PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

Keith H. Allen, CPA, MST. ; c
Mark R Carler, CPA., CVA. ' Gary AAving.m, 3 ;im
Roger P. Provencher, Jr, CPA C Joseph Wolvertan, CPA., C.VA.

INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANT’S REVIEW REPORT

To The Board of Directors
Seymour Osman Community Center & Youth Safe Havcn

Dover, New Hampshire

We have reviewed the accompanying statement of financial position of Seymour Osman Community
Center & Youth Safe Haven (a nonprofit organization) as of June 30, 2012, and the related statemeats of
activities, functional expenses and cash flows for the'!year then ended. A review includes primarily
applying analytical procedures to management’s financial data and making inquities of Organization
management. A review is substantiaily less in scope’ than an audit, the objective of which is the
expression of an opinion regarding the financial statements as a whole. Accordingly, we do not express
such an opinion. ;

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America and for
designing, implementing, and maintaining mtemal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements. ‘

Our responsibility is to conduct the review in aocmdanoe with Statements on Standards for Accounting
and Review Services issued by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards
require us to perform procedures to obtain limited assurance that there are po material modifications that
should be made to the financial statements. We believe that the results of our procedures provide a

reasonable basis for our report.

Based on our review, with the exception of the matter dwcnbed in the following paragraph, we are not
aware of any material modifications that should be made to the accompanying financial statements in
order for them to be in conformity with accounting pnnap]m generally accepted in the United States of

America.

As disclosed in Note 2 to the financial statements, accountmg pnnmples generally accepted in the United
States of America require the consolidation of ﬁnancmlly related non-profit organizations. Management
has informed us that the Organization’s accounts have inot been consolidated with the Dover Housing

Authority (DHA). The effect of this departure on thchrgamzat]ons financial position, activities, and
cash flows has not been determined.

Ouellette < Associates, PA.
‘ Certified Public Accountants
November 30, 2012
Lewiston, Maine
1111 Lisbon Street » Lewiston, Maine 04240 » Telephone: (207) 786-0328 ¢ FAX: (207) 7839377 ¢« www.oacpas.net
!



SEYMOUR OSMAN COMMUNITY CENTER & YOUTH SAFE HAVEN

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

JUNE 30, 2012
ASSETS
ASSETS
Cash , $ 8,021
Grants Receivable 16,215
TOTAL ASSETS $ 247236
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable $ 902
Due to Dover Housing Authority 42,846
Refundable Advances . 1,302
Total Liabilities : 45,050
NET ASSETS
Unrestricted (20,814)
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS - $ 24236

See Independent Accountant's Review Report and Accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements.
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SEYMOUR OSMAN COMMUNITY CENTER & YOUTH SAFE HAVEN

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

SUPPORT AND REVENUE
Contributions: ‘
Dover Housing Awuthority - Monetary Funding : $ 150,000
Dover Housing Authority - Donated Facility 87,198
Dover Housing Authority - Donated Overhead Costs 29,326
Other Miscellaneous Contributions , 3,595
Grant Revenue:
215t Century Community Leaming Center Grant 83,278
JC Penney/UNH Cooperative Extension ‘ 5,925
Women's Fund of New Hampshire ' 3,969
Macy's Grant 2,500
Service Fees : 12,712
Fundraising 7,509
Other Income ' 4,463
Interest Income : 25
TOTAL SUPPORT AND REVENUE 390,500
EXPENSES :
Program Expenses : ‘ 402,604
Msanagement and General ' _ 19,842
TOTAL EXPENSES i __ 422,446
CHANGE IN UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS i (31,946)
UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 11,132
UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR - $ (20,814

See Independent Accountant's Review Report and Accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements.
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SEYMOUR OSMAN COMMUNITY CENTER & YOUTH SAFE HAVEN
STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Program Management
Expenses and General Total

Salaries and Wages $ 169,723 $ - $ 169,723
Payroll Taxes and Benefits ¢ 76,820 - : 76,820
Total Personnel Expenses 246,543 - 246,543
Rental Expense . 78,478 8,720 87,198
Direct Program Expenses - Contracted Services j 16,458 - 16,458
Direct Program Expenses - Other . 26,138 - 26,138
Utilities . 12355 1,373 13,728
Supplies and Materials 3,229 - 3,229
Professional Fees : 4,450 - 4,450
Computer Support 210 - 210
Maintenance . 5,849 650 6,499
Telephone and Internet 2,243 - 2,243
Insurance _ : 3,481 - _ 3,481
Training 496 - , 496
Travel and Conferences 663 - 663
Printing and Copying ; 1,641 - 1,641
Postage ; 320 - 320
Fundraising j 50 - 50
Bookkeeping - 9,099 9,099
TOTAL EXPENSES $ 402,604 $ 19,842 s 422 446

See Independent Accountant's Review Report and Aé:companying Notes to the Financial Statements.
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SEYMOUR OSMAN COMMUNITY CENTER & YOUTH SAFE HAVEN
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Change in Net Assets , $  (31,946)
Adjustmenis to Reconcile Change in Net Assets to
Net Cash Used by Operating Activities:
(Increase) Decrease in Operating Assels:

Grants Receivable : 1,563
Increase (Decrease) in Operating Liabtlities:

Accounts Payable : 423

Refundable Advances ~(3,143)
NET CASH USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES ‘ (33,103)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES :

Net Advances from Dover Housing Authority ' 11,237
DECREASE IN CASH (21,866)
CASH AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 29,887
CASH AT END OF YEAR $ 8,021

See Independent Accountant's Review Report and Accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements.
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SEYMOUR OSMAN COMMUNITY CENTER & YOUTH SAFE HAVEN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2012

NOTE I:

NOTE 2:

ORGANIZATION AND NATURE OF ACTIVITIES

Seymour Osman Community Center & Youth Safe Haven (SOCC) is a private nonprofit
organization affiliated with the Dover Housing Authority (DHA). SOCC was formed by
DHA and both organizations share many of the same board members. In addition, DHA
is currently the primary supporter of SOCC. The SOCC’s mission is to provide positive
youth development programs, family support and education about drugs and alcohol.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Reporting Entity .
The accompanying financial statements are those of only SOCC and do not include the
accounts of Dover Housing Authority. Management has indicated that the Organization
is financially related to the Dover Housing Authority (DHA). DHA has a controlling
financial interest through its voting interest in the Board of the Organization and DHA
has an economic interest by providing isignificant support to the Organization. As a
result, the financial statements of the Qrganization should be consolidated with DHA
under generally accepted accounting principles.

Accounting Method . :

The accounts of the Organization are maintained in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America on an accrual basis.

Basis of Presentation _

The Organization is required to report information regarding its financial position and
activities according to three classes of net assets as follows:

Unrestricted Net Assets — Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed
stipulations.

Temporarily Restricted Net Assets — Net assets subject to donor-mposed
stipulations that limit the use of the donated funds. When the time restriction
ends or when the purpose restriction is accomplished, temporarily restricted
net assets are reclassified to untestricted net assets and reported in the
statement of activities as net assets released from restrictions.

Permanently Restricied Net Assets — Net assets subject to donor-imposed
stipulations that they be maintained permanently by the Organization.
Generally, the donors of these assets parmit the Organization to use all or part
of the income camned on any related investments for general or specific

PUrposes.
A} ’J’,une 30, 2012, the Organization has oqu Unrestricted Net Assets.



SEYMOUR OSMAN COMMUNITY CENTER & YOUTH SAFE HAVEN

NOTES TO FH\IANCIALiSTATEMEN’[S
{Continued)

JUNE 30,2012

NOTE 2:

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOL?NTING POLICIES (Continued)

Promises to Give
Contributions are mcogmmd when t.he donor makes a promise to give to the

Organization that s, in substance, unconditional. Contributions that are restricted by the
donor are reported as increases in unrestricted net assets if the restrictions expire in the
fiscal year in which the contributions'are recognized. All other domor-restricted
contributions are reported as increases in temporanly or permanently restricted net assets
depending on the nature of the mstncuon& When a restriction expires, temporarily
restricted net assets are reclassified to unrestncted net assets.

Grants Receivable
Grants receivable consist primarily of statc and local community grants. Management

believes that balances carried are fully!collectible. Accordingly, no allowance for
doubtful accounts is required. When management determines accounts are uncollectible,
they will be directly charged to opcnmons Management believes such amounts would

be immaterial.

_ Eqmpment ‘
It is the Organization’s policy to capnahze equipment with a cost of over $5,000 if

purchased, and a fair value of $5,000 or more if the equipment is donated. Donated
equipment is reporied as unrestricted conmbuhons unless the donor has restricted the
donated asset to a specific purpose. Assets donated with exphcn restrictions regarding
theit use and contributions of cash that must be used to acquire equipment are reported as
restricted contributions. Equipment is depxeclated using the straight-line method over the -
estimated useful lives of the assets. All of the Organization’s equipment was fully

depreciated at June 30, 2012.

Income Taxes
The Organization is exempt from federal income taxes under Section 501(c}3) of the

Internal Revenue Code and did not conduct unrelated business activitics. Therefore,
no provision has been made for federal income taxes in the accompanying financial
statements. Management has determined that the Organization does not have any
uncertain tax positions and associated unrecognized benefits that materially impact the
financial statements or related disclosures! Since tax matters are subject to some degree
of uncertainty, there can be no assurance that the Organization’s tax returns will not be
challenged by the taxing suthoritics and that the Organization will not be subject to
additional tax, penalties and interest as;a result of such challenge. Generally, the
Organization’s tax returns remain subject io examination for three years after they were

filed.

Use of Estimates
The preparation of financial stazcments in conformity with accounting principles

generally accepted in the United States: Lof America requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect 'certain reported amounts and disclosures.
Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

-7-



SEYMOUR OSMAN COMMUNITY CE:NTER & YOUTH SAFE HAVEN

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

TUNE 30, 2012

NOTE 2;

NOTE 3:

NOTE 4:

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Cash and Cash Equivalents ’
The Organization considers all highly liquid debt instruments purchased with a maturity
of three months or less to be cash eqmvalcnts The Organization had po cash equivalents.

at June 30, 2012.

Subsequent Events
Events that occur after the statement of ﬁnancla.l position date but before the financial

statements were available to be issued must be evaluated for recognition or disclosure.
Subsequent eveats that provide cvzdcncc about conditions that existed at the statement
of financial position date are required tq be recognized in the accompanying financial
statements, Subsequent events that provide evidence about conditions that existed after
the statement of financial position date ‘reqmre disclosure in the accompanying notes.

Management evaluated the activity of the Organization through November 30, 2012,

the date the financial statements were available to be issued, and concluded that no
subsequent events have occurred that; would require recognition iu the financial
statements or disclosure in the notes to the financial statements.

- GRANTS RECEIVABLE

The Organization has been awarded scveml grants to further its goal of providing youth
programs, family support and drug and aloohol education. These grants are considered
exchange transactions. Accordingly, revcnue is earned as the program service is
provided and expenses are recognized as incurred. Grants Receivables are due in less
than one year and consist of the followmg at June 30, 2012:

21* Century Community Learning Center Grant 16,215
REFUNDABLE ADVANCES

The Organization records grant awards accounted for as exchange transactions as
refundable advances until related services are performed, at which time they are
recognized as revenue. The activity in the refundable advance account is reported ss

follows:

Refindable Advances, Beginning of Year $ 4445
Grant Awards Received 91,331
Grant Expenditures (94.474)

Refimdable Advances, End of Year ) $ 1302

8-
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SEYMOUR OSMAN COMMUNITY CENTER & YOUTH SAFE HAVEN

NOTES TO FINANCIAﬂ STATEMENTS
(ContinuetZi)

JUNE 30, 2012

NOTE5:

NOTE 6:

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Common Control '

SOCC and DHA share many of the same board membess.

Donated Faciliies '

The DHA has donated the use of the facxhty occupied by SOCC without any stipulation
as to the occupancy period. For this reason the Organization recognized, at fair value, a
contribution and rental expense in the amount of $87,198 for the value of the rent during

the year.

Donated Overhead Costs
The DHA has funded certain other overhmd costs on behalf of the SOCC. These costs

are treated as donations as DHA does not require the Organization to reimburse these
costs. Overhead costs funded by DHA are as follows:

Utilities $13,728
Bookkeeping 9,099
Maintenance 6,499

‘ - $29,326

Personne] Expenses ’
The Organization is staffed by cmployew of DHA. The costs associated with these
cmployees are reimbursed to DHA and alrc reported as Salaries and Wages and Payroll
Taxes and Benefits for financial statanent reporting purposes. For the year ended June
30, 2012, SOCC paid DHA $197,645 for personnel costs. At June 30, 2012, SOCC
owed DHA $42,846 for June 2012 personnel costs.

Community Center Funding
During the year ended June 30, 2012, DHA provided funding towards the community

centers operations. SOCC utilized fundmg totaling $150,000 towards the support of its
community center programs.

Financial Support )
Presently, DHA has agreed to provide ﬂmdmg to SOCC on an as needed basis. For the

year ended June 30, 2012, DHA prowded approximately 69% of the Organization’s total
funding. .

CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK

The Organization maintains its cash ba.laném with one financia) institution. Accounts are
insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) up to $250,000. The
Organization’s cash balances were fully insured at June 30, 2012.

!

9
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SEYMOUR OSMAN COMMUNITY CE:NTER & YOUTH SAFE HAVEN

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{Continued)

JUNE 30, 2012

NOTE 7:

{

CONTINGENCIES — GOING CONCERN

As indicated in the accompanying financial statements, the Organization showed a
decrease in net assets of $31,946 duringithe year ended June 30, 2012. As of that date,
the Organization’s current liabilities exceeded its total assets by $20,814. Those factors,
as well as the uncertain conditions that the Organization faces regarding its fimding
sources, create an uncertainty about thc Orgamza’aon s ability to continue as a going
concern. Management of the Organmuon is developing a plan to reduce its operating
expenses and Dover Housing Authority has committed to monetary fundmg of $100,000
for the upcoming year. The ability of thc Organization to continue as a going concem is
dependent upon the plan’s success and future funding from Dover Housing Authority.
The financial statements do not include hy adjustments that might be necessary if the
Organization is unable to continue as a going concern.

-10-



PITTSBURG
Shwsvue o
. Ay o]
‘STENAITSTOMN .
ax
X E8rooy &
o]
TUWBIA Lochrewr
rsoh
— | e
STRATFORD
T3]
CAMBRIDGE
fé STARK
% N
o
g - SUCLESS
LANCASTER B v
o 3N
) 3
S B o SHELBURNE
L “\,\“0 ¥
gl LLT.ETOR ;a} ey
CARRDLL & t :, [r=tr}
§ LYRAN P ‘gw'
) Aodd
; s it ol
& T W
BaTH Y} ()
; A ;
i_; #ANCON] N s |
WA '
N ¢ 1S ~———
S tixcoy 3 BARTLETT
‘\’ -
BeTon nary LAt
it
4 wORsTOCk:
1Lty
WARegy AL9ANT
WATERY (LLE
9470Rp THORY TOH MADISOR pfrow
VENTWORTH _ -
. BumEY CETRH SAHDNICH -
Lre Iy FREEDCM
a2 2
a)
o* 2 {roucemess =
** GoTm Y B WULTINECRY e tnn
AMoyg N 1%',
4 K3 OSSIPEE
e \ ™ Framso
g A
53] rp"‘} e & o
o b, DL R
ENFlELD, e A 5
GRAFTON X =
PLAINFIE &4 . g
oo P ARET e,  sawggaron I &6iLrodp 3
N
CORMISH W . "
o [ R OB e 2
CROYOCH 2 s 5 {0 " oo
& &ta:“ - =< SILKANTON % ‘\\_-‘0‘
EMONT § L e 3
5 gn_xsauﬂ Wi
i SUTTOA 2 CAXTERBLRY _ AARNSTEAG FARMINGTON
L Louopw. /2,
g UNITY ®, WEWIUR - % {oudign 7N
Z 4 e &% ROCHESTER
g s - AR s - & Yo STRGFoRd
8 Y acwom 43‘)% BRANTAY “ A AT
O LEN B4R IN$FORD
HENME GERAOPE TN O E) 830w ‘%‘qb RINGTOm AL INR
E' VASHUNGTM ; 5 2ors,
ol e {11 56080 %y ™ Bl ogeasiend )
5;' \)«-,\S‘/ L . - ﬂ\‘g\ﬂ 173 fouminn e
4 T STOSLARD. CEERING | yEaas 3 coxserr "
£ ~
P e ANTRIM oy [ ) covine PO &7
3, 3 e % QJ,>:) ket ) c
- »d - . f : b,
l s T : 5, | i k"’& % aREATS %, &
R RAHCOK . \% & N 2
48> N 3 e % WESTER 6P Jwoo0p Ay = d
KEEME iRl ) - ) ug 5
RRISY % (q- X B50rcqn o 1%
BETER. = %y, *3 ) % \ S 56‘; i %,
CHESTE auBL ETERe 7
STEIFIELD R {’e SAY DERRY - r,;: b
\ HER ‘ :
Il s <~ !
% . Svmizerf rogr b darsagr [SAaRM &",‘ HILTOM yy & & {2 A - e 46;. b
LALS S ap =% A - )d’
%f RICHHONOF . rZWILL T AM] g, & § Lok
- ) R | %\ g|ALs
—— [, S @, 8 I RALHTA PEL AN -



